JOINT REPORT ON 2023
WHOLESALE WATER RATE CALCULATION

FOR WATER PURCHASED BY
GRAYSON COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
FROM THE CITY OF LEITCHFIELD

Prepared for

Leitchfield Utilities Commission and Grayson County Water District

by
HMB Professional Engineers, Inc. Grayson County Water District
3 HMB Circle 21 Shull White Road
Frankfort, KY 40601 Leitchfield, KY 42754

April 2023



TABLE OF CONTENTS

PAGE

RECOMMENDATION LETTER

SECTION | INTRODUCTION 1
SECTION I GALLONS OF WATER PUMPED 3
SECTION Il  OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE 4
SECTION IV GENERAL OPERATING AND ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS 6
SECTIONV  DEBT SERVICE 7
SECTION VI REPLACEMENT COSTS 9
SECTION VII SUMMARY AND RATE COMPUTATIONS 10

LIST OF TABLES
TABLE 1 Water System Operation & Maintenance Expenses 4
TABLE 2 General and Administrative Expense Allocations 6
TABLE 3 Allocation of 1995 Combined Utilities Revenue Bonds 7
TABLE 4 Debt Service Allocation for 1995 Revenue Bonds 8
TABLE 5 Debt Service for Series 2012A & 2012B 8
TABLE 6 Debt Service for Series 2019A & 2019B 9
TABLE 8 Summary of Expense Allocation and Rate Computation 10
APPENDIX

Appendix1 Tables A-1, A-2, and 7

Appendix 2 Leitchfield Utilities Commission’s Audit for Year Ending June 30, 2022
Appendix 3  Supplemental Information — Table 1

Appendix4 Bond Debt Service Schedules — Revenue Bonds, Series, 2014, Series 2012A
and 2012B, and Series 2019A and 2019B



| INTRODUCTION

The purpose of this Report is to determine the wholesale rate to be charged by the Leitchfield
Utilities Commission (Commission) for water purchased by the Grayson County Water District
(District). Computations made in preparation of this Report were in accordance with the procedures
outlined in an engineering document entitled WHOLESALE WATER RATE STUDY FOR WATER
PURCHASED BY GRAYSON COUNTY WATER DISTRICT FROM CITY OF LEITCHFIELD - MARCH,

1988 hereinafter referred to as the March 1988 Joint Report. This Report is prepared as a joint effort

between Jeremey Woosley/Kyle Cannon representing the Grayson County Water District, and

Matthew Baker, P.E. representing the City of Leitchfield/Leitchfield Utilities Commission.

The introduction section of the March 1988 Joint Report states that “computations made during this

study are in strict conformance with the governing document which is the Agreed Judgment in Civil

Action No. 82-Cl-123 dated August 15, 1983”. The Agreed Judgment incorporates a Resolution
adopted by the District on July 7, 1985, and the City on August 4, 1983. The Resolution states that
the determination of the next rate will be based on the revised contract dated April 11, 1978, and
shall be made by one engineer appointed by the District and one engineer appointed by the

Commission and the rate computations shall use actual expense figures shown in the audit report.”

The findings and recommendations of the March 1988 Joint Report were ratified by the District and
the Commission in a Supplement Agreement. Among several provisions included in the Supplement
Agreement, a provision that states, “Future rate calculations shall be made in accordance with the
Joint Resolution using the methods, assumption, and procedures described and used in the Joint

Report” was included.

For reference purposes, the following documents are applicable to this wholesale rate review. For
brevity, only the Audit for the year ending June 30, 2022 is included in the document.

o Leitchfield Utilities Commission’s Audit for year ending June 30, 2022;

. Agreed Judgment in Civil Action #82-CI-123 dated August 15, 1983 including
adopting resolution by the District on July 7, 1985 and by the Commission date
August 15. 1983;

J March 1988 Joint Report;
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o The Supplement Agreement that was agreed to by parties subsequent to the
acceptance of the March 1988 Joint Report;

o December 1993 Joint Report;

o The Second Supplement Agreement that was agreed to by the parties subsequent
to the acceptance of the December 1993 Joint Report; and

° The June 4, 1997 Wholesale Water Rate Calculation based on the Joint Resolution
as well as provisions of the Second Supplement Agreement.

The procedures used to calculate the wholesale water rate in this Engineering Report are in
conformance with the procedures and methods contained in the March 1988 Joint Report and as
modified by the Second Supplement Agreement. In accordance therewith, the District’s rate is
based on its proportional share of expenses incurred by the Commission related to treatment,

pumping, storage, and transmission to the District including:

COST COMPONENT ALLOCATION AS PER
1. OPERATION & MAINTENANCE JOINT RESOLUTION / JOINT REPORT
2. GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE JOINT RESOLUTION / JOINT REPORT

3. DEBT SERVICE FOR:

A. Facilities existing prior to the execution

JOINT RESOLUTION / JOINT REPORT
of the Second Supplement Agreement

B. Facilities constructed after the execution PARAGRAPH 4 OF THE SECOND

of the Second Supplement Agreement SUPPLEMENT AGREEMENT
C. Facilities constructed after the execution PARAGRAPH 5 OF THE SECOND
of the Second Supplement Agreement SUPPLEMENT AGREEMENT
4. REPLACEMENT COSTS JOINT RESOLUTION / JOINT REPORT

This Report presents details on the various computations for each of these broad expense
categories. The period for this Report is from July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2022. As indicated above, a
copy of Leitchfield Utilities Commission’s audit for this period is included in the Appendix of this

Report. That audit was prepared by Taylor, Polson & Company, PSC of Glasgow, Kentucky.

NI
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] GALLONS OF WATER PUMPED

As stated in the March 1988 Joint Report, the determination of the total gallons of water to be used
as the divisor in a rate structure is a key element in determining an equitable rate. During the
course of preparing the March 1988 Joint Report, the respective engineers agreed to a specific
definition of the term “total pumped at the City’s WTP” as used in the 1978 contract. As set forth in
that report, “Total pumped at the City’s WTP” is taken to mean the total quantity pumped from the

WTP and available for sale to the District.

Listed below is the total water sold by the City; total water pumped by the City; total water
purchased by the District for the year ending June 30, 2020.

Water System Sales and Pumped Flow Amounts
Fiscal Year Jul - 2021 to Jun - 2022

Month Total Sales Water Pumped District Purchases
Jul-21 35,815,188 53,430,619 12,643,500
Aug-21 38,480,618 53,456,853 14,614,000
Sep-21 35,909,202 50,409,026 14,677,800
Oct-21 36,705,599 49,365,857 11,528,700
Nov-21 32,520,423 49,591,705 13,448,000
Dec-21 33,301,087 49,041,843 13,165,000
Jan-22 32,357,724 50,467,395 12,284,300
Feb-22 33,934,728 47,391,121 14,709,400
Mar-22 35,603,884 53,034,372 10,828,600
Apr-22 33,147,737 51,770,892 11,635,500
May-22 34,698,066 55,044,890 13,852,300
Jun-22 38,409,335 57,815,751 16,326,500
Total 420,883,591 620,820,324 159,713,600
Unaccounted Water = 199,936,733
Unaccounted Water Percentage = 32.21%
16 % Allowance for "Unaccounted for Water" = 99,331,251.84
Adjusted Water Pumped (16 percent Unaccounted Amount) = 521,489,072.16

It was further agreed in the March 1988 Joint Report that if the Commission’s “Unaccounted for
Water” exceeds 16 percent of “Water Produced for Sale”, the “Total Pumped” shall be calculated
as if “Unaccounted for Water” equals 16 percent of “Water Produced for Sale”. Therefore, since the
Commission’s “unaccounted for water” amount is greater than 16 percent, the divisor for
calculating the wholesale rate shall equal 521,489,072.16 gallons for the year ending June 30, 2022.
This amount equates to the total “water pumped” less an “unaccounted for water” amount of 16

percent of total “water pumped”.

[S%)
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1 OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE

Table No. 1 below presents the general ledger’s operation and maintenance accounts for the years

ending June 30, 2022. The costs are grouped in the categories listed in the audit reports prepared by

Taylor, Polson & Company, PSC' and are arranged in columns according to whether they apply to

facilities and operations which benefit both the City and the District (Joint Use) or those primarily
benefiting only the City’s retail customers (City Only). As set forth in the March 1988 Joint Report, the

determination of “Joint Use” was based on whether the expenses were related to treatment,

pumping, storage, and transmission to the District.

Table No. 1

Water System Operation & Maintenance Expenses*

Leitchfield Utilities Commission

(Year Ending June 30, 2022)

Account Name Joint Use City Only Total
Labor
Labor - Water $211,110 $211,110
Water Plant Labor $360,026 $360,026
SUBTOTALS $360,026  $211,110 $571,136
Power & Pumping
Electric at Water Plant $155,604 $2,328 $157,932
Electric for Raw Water Intake $99,742 SO $99,742
Water Tower Electric $2,048 S0 $2,048
Electric at Water Plant House $1,704 SO $1,704
SUBTOTALS $259,098 $2,328 $261,426
Purification Supplies
Water Plant Chemicals $217,088 SO $217,088
Water Plant Lab Supplies $27,492 SO $27,492
Water Plant Monitoring/Lab Svcs $12,880 S0 $12,880
SUBTOTALS $257,460 SO $257,460
Supplies/Repairs/Services
Water Tower Expense & Maint $2,924 S0 $2,924
Line & Meter R&M $438  $102,044 $102,482
Materials for Water Installation S0 $8,190 $8,190
Utilities/Security Expense $2,899 $979 $3,878
SUBTOTALS $6,261  $111,213 $117,474
TOTALS $882,845  $324,651 $1,207,4982

Year Ending Jlune 30, 2022 Rat
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1} OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE

! supplemental data provided by Sabrina Whitaker, City of Leitchfield - included in the Appendix of this document
? Audit Page 44
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IV GENERAL OPERATING AND ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS

The Supplemental Schedule Section of the 2022 Audit Report contains a tabulation of the general
operating and administration expenses for the water system. Using this information and using the
procedures established in previous “Joint Report”, including the discussions and notes to Table 2 in
the march 1988 Report, the allocation of general and administrative expenses to “Joint Use” is as
follows:

Table 2
General Operating and Administrative Expense Allocations
Leitchfield Utilities Commission *
(Year Ending June 30, 2022)

Water

Audited System Percent Joint Use

Account Name Amount Amount Joint Use Amount
Insurance $85,073 $34,029 50.00% $17,014
Legal & Accounting $53,342 $17,703 0.89% §158**
Miscellaneous $10,638 $3,724  63.04% $2,348
Office Supplies $70,833 $26,738 0.89% $238%**
Salaries - Commissioners $29,001 $9,859  20.00% $1,972
Group Insurance $330,537 $110,072 63.04% $69,389
Salaries - Others $309,267 $103,578 20.00% $20,716
Retirement, taxes, others $794,619 $340,873 63.04% $214,886
Workers Compensation $27,340 $10,731 63.04% $6,765
Rents $54,929 $18,414 0.89% S164**
Telephone $27,329 $10,566  20.00% $2,113
General Operating $373,432 $131,223  0.89% $1,168**
Totals $2,166,340 $817,520 $336,931

: See Table A-1 for calculation of labor related percentages. Data Provided by Sabrina Whitaker, City of Leitchfield
** Joint use percentage for these expenses are calculated in accordance with the formula set out in Note 1 to Table 2 in
the March 1988 Joint Report: (district meters/total meters)x(adjusted water pumped/district purchases)
2022: (8/2927)x(521,489,072.16/159,713,600) = .89%

o
i
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\ DEBT SERVICE

A. Debt Service for Facilities existing before the Second Supplement Agreement

Debt of water facilities existing prior to the adoption of the Second Supplement Agreement has
been retired.

B. Debt Service for Facilities under Paragraph 4 of the Second Supplement Agreement

In the Second Supplement Agreement, the method for payment of the 1995 Bond Issue was
outlined in paragraph 4 of that Agreement. As opposed to the variable debt service percentage for
debt on facilities existing before the Second Supplement Agreement, the debt percentage for the

1995 Revenue Bonds are fixed.

Listed below in Table 3 is a determination of the debt percentage applicable to the District as set
forth in paragraph 4 of the Second Supplement Agreement and as contained in the Joint Report
dated June 4, 1997. Table A-2 contains an allocation of water treatment costs and is included in

the Appendix of this Report.

Table 3
Allocation of 1995 Combined Utilities Revenue Bonds
Leitchfield Utilities Commission
Allocation to

Final Cost District District Amount

Contract A - Transmission Main $947,899 26.00% $246,454
Contract B - Transmission Main $587,315 26.00% $152,702
Contract C - Water Treatment Plant (See Table A-2) $685,892 31.46% $215,782
Raw Water Intake Facility $351,500 26.00% $91,390
Easement Costs for Water Transmission Mains $4,925 26.00% $1,281
SUBTOTAL - Construction Related Items $2,577,531 $707,608
District's Average Percentage of Construction 27.45%

Other Project Costs

Engineering Fees $248,592

Net Interim Financing (KLC) $109,650

Raw Water Intake Interim Financing $9,257

Legal Fees $20,155

SUBTOTAL - Other Project Costs $387,654

Percent of Other Project Costs Allocated to District 27.45%
Amount of Other Project Costs Allocated to District $106,422.38
Total Project Costs $2,965,185 $814,030
Original Loan Amount $2,880,000

Percentage of Loan Allocated to District 28.26%

Year Ending June 30, 2022 Rate Review -
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This debt was refinanced in 2014 with 2014 Revenue Bonds. Listed below is a partial listing of the
annual debt service costs for the 2014 Revenue Bonds and the 28.26 percent allocation to the
District. The allocation of this debt service costs to the District is fixed and does not change with
changes in flows. However, as requested by the District’s engineer in 1995, this debt or expense is
divided by the amount of water purchased by the District to obtain a per 1,000 gallon rate. At that
time, the District requested this portion of the rate be stated in terms of a per 1,000 gallon rate to
facilitate the approval process from the Kentucky Public Service Commission.

Table 4
Debt Service Allocation for 2014 Revenue Bonds
Leitchfield Utilities Commission

Year Total District's Allocation
2020 $144,415 $40,812
2021 $142,915 $40,388
2022 $141,075 $39,868
2023 $143,930 $40,675
2024 $141,592 $40,014
C. Debt Service for Facilities under Paragraph 5 of the Second Supplement Agreement

In 2012, the Leitchfield Utilities System issued revenue bonds in the aggregate principal amount of
$2,710,000, consisting of $1,960,000 Series A bonds and $750,000 Series B bonds for the
construction of the raw water intake system to replace of the original Phase 1 raw water intake
system for the water treatment plant. The capacity of this raw water intake system is 5.0 MGD of
which 0.95 MGD of the total 5.0 MGD capacity is allocated to the District. Accordingly, 19 percent
(0.95/5.0) of the debt service costs is allocated to the District. Listed below in Table 5 is a summary

of the annual debt service costs for the Series 2012A and 2012B bonds and the amount allocated to

the District.
Table 5
Debt Service for Series 2012A & 2012B
Year Ending June 30, 2012 A 2012B Total Allocation to the District
2020 $69,285 $27,884 $97,169 S 18,462
2021 $69,605 $28,094 $97,699 S 18,563
2022 $69,905 $27,794 $97,699 S 18563
2023 $70,185 $27,650 $97,835 S 18,589
2024 $70,445 $27,845 $98,290 S 18,675

Year Ending June 30, 2022 Rate Review -8



D. Debt Service for Facilities under Paragraph 5 of the Second Supplement Agreement

In 2019, the Leitchfield Utilities System issued revenue bonds in the aggregate principal amount of
$10,103,000, consisting of $5,564,000 Series A bonds and $4,539,000 Series B bonds for the
construction of the new water treatment plant (WTP). The capacity of the WTP is 4.0 MGD of
which 0.95 MGD of the total 4.0 MGD capacity is allocated to the District. Accordingly, 23.75
percent (0.95/4.0) of the debt service costs is allocated to the District. Listed below in Table 6 is a
summary of the annual debt service costs for the Series 2019A and 2019B bonds and the amount

allocated to the District.

Table 6
Debt Service for Series 2019A & 2019B
Year Ending June 30, 2019 A 2019B Total Allocation to the District
2020 S0 SO S0 S 0
2021 $132,480 $107,508 $239,988 S 56,997
2022 $194,672 1$159,050 $353,722 S 84,009
2023 $194,940 $158,632 $353,572 S 83,973
2024 $194,172 $159,198 $353,370 $ 83,925

Vi REPLACEMENT COSTS

Included in the March 1988 Joint Report was a tabulation of items taken from the depreciation
schedule of the Commission. These types of items were selected in the March 1988 Joint Report to
be included for joint participation based on “a review of individual transactions to verify benefits
both to the District and City”. Previous Joint Reports have updated these items to reflect additional

items and remove those items completely depreciated.”

A summary of the depreciation schedule for joint use facilities not covered by bonded debt is
contained in Table 7, which is included in the Appendix of this Report. As presented therein, the

joint participation costs are $60,970.96 for the year ending June 30, 2022.

Year Ending lune 30, 2022 Rate Review ~9-



Vil SUMMARY AND RATE COMPUTATIONS

Table 8 presents a summary of the expenses considered in this study and the actual computation
of the wholesale water rate applicable to the District for the year ending June 30, 2022. The divisor
(521,489,072.16 gallons) in the rate computation is the total quantity water as discussed in Section
Il entitled Gallons of Water Pumped and 159,713,600 gallons as the annual amount purchased by
the District during year ending June 30, 2022.

Table 8
Summary of Expense Allocations and Rate Computation
(Year Ending June 30, 2022)

Joint Use Rate Per
Expense Category Allocation Divisor 1,000 Gals

Operation & Maintenance $882,845 521,489,072.16 $1.693
General & Administrative $336,931 521,489,072.16 $0.646
Replacement Cost $55,054.42 521.489.072.16 $0.106
Debt Service N $39,868 159,713,600 $0.250
Debt Service $18,563 159,713,600 $0.116
Debt Service $84,009 159,713,600 $0.526

Totals $1,417,270.42 $3.337

" Debt Service under Paragraph 4 of the Second Supplement Agreement (Section B)
2 Debt Service under Paragraph 5 of the Second Supplement Agreement (Section C)

&=

* Debt Service under Paragraph 4 of the Second Supplement Agreement (Section D)
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Table No. A-1
Summary of Direct Labor Expenses
Leitchfield Utilities Commission
(Year Ending June 30, 2022)

Utility Amount Percent
Water S 571,136 36%
Sewer S 439,225 38%
Gas S 220,727 14%
Commission S 29,000 2%
Admin S 309,267 20%
S 1,569,355 100%
Water Amount Percent
Water System S 211,110 36.96%
Water Plant S 360,026 63.04%

S 571,136 100%



Table No. A-2
Contract C - Water Treatment Plant Additions and Modifications

Distribution of Contractor's Breakdown to Contract's Capacity Allocations
o Common Raw Water | Settling ) Backwash |High Service
Items and Amounts of Contractor's Breakdown Const. ltems Main Basin Filter Retention Facilities
. Bonds and Insurance $38,000| $38,000
Supervision $36,000 $36,000
Mobilization $4,000 _..$4,000 ) )
Lagoon Expansion $22,000 $22,000
_Structure Cut Filter Bldg. $8,000( $8,000
Final Grade $2,000 $2,000
Bituminous Paving $4,000 $4,000
Seeding $3,000 $3,000
Concrete: Filter Bldg. $65,000 $65,000
Precast Roof Filter Bldg $2,800 $2,800
Masonry: Filter Bldg. $15,000 $15,000
Misc. Metals $6,000 $6,000
Membrane Roofing Filter Bldg. $5,000 $5,000
.. Hollow Metal Doors\Frames . . $1,2000 ] $1,200]
_ Windows $1,200 o $1,200
. Painting 810000 st00000 bbb
_Elevator $25,445 .$25,445
Electic . $59,655| $59,655 o e
Exterior Ductile Iron Piping $52,622 $52,622
Interior Ductile Iron Piping $12,000( . A $12,000
Raw Water Line $63,000 $63,000
Valves ) $10,000 ) $10,000
Filter Equipment ) $53,000 $53,000
Instrumentation & Filter Valves $160,000 $160,000
Tube Settlers $23,550 $23,550
Sub-total ~ $682,472
Amount of Unit Price Items 2 thru § $58,050
__ Amount of Unit Price ltems 6 thru 9 A7 ISR NS [S— —
_Amount of Original Bid $750972( oo
Items and amount added by Change Order 2
Emergency Overflow Pipe for Lagoon $1,413 $1,413
Reroute Chlorine thru Building (Safety Prob.) $507 $507
Insulation of Filter Influent Pipe $1,500 $1,500
, .. Sublotal _ $3,420]
Amount deleted by change orders 1 & 2 $egs500(
Final Contract Amount $685,892 $188,607 ;
Total of Allocated Cost ' ...$497,285 ..863.000|....823.550| .. $365.322 ...$23.413 $22.000
Percent of Allocated Cost to $497,285 12.67% 4.74% 73.46% 4.71% 4.42%
Costto be Prorated $188,607 — . )
Summary of Prorated Cost $23,897 $8,940 $138,551 $8,883 $8,336
Totals of Allocated Costs $685,892 . $86,897| $32,490| $503,873 $32,296 $30,336
.. Percent to be Allocated to District — 26.00%| _35.20% 31.70% 35.20% 35.20%
Construction Cost Allocated to District $215,804 $22,593| $11,436| $159,728 $11,368 $10,678



Table 7

Leitchfield Utilities System
Schedule of Utilities System Depreciation

6/30/2022
Joint Use

Description Cost Cost Percent Method Rate/Yrs Prior Current Joint
Renovated Old Tower - 1978 46,705.00 - 0.00%| SL 0.100 46,705.00 - -
1981-82 137,863.31 51,919.32 37.66%| SL 0.030 137,863.31 - -
Emergency Pump - 1982 13,642.00 13,642.00 [ 100.00%| SL 0.030 13,642.00 - -
Pump Install - 1982 5,746.00 5,746.00 | 100.00%| SL 0.030 5,746.00 - -
Blast & Paint Tower 3,450.00 3,450.00 | 100.00%| SL 0.030 3,450.00 - -
Electric Check Valves, 7-82 3,593.01 3,693.01 | 100.00%| SL 0.030 3,593.01 - -
Pumps Installed, 5-82 8,911.80 8,911.80 | 100.00%| SL 0.030 8,867.12 - -
Lightning Damage 7,570.61 7,5670.61 | 100.00%| SL 0.030 7,513.89 - -
Motor Repair, 5-84 1,836.30 1,836.30 | 100.00%| SL 0.025 1,704.40 85.99 85.99
Water Lines, 6-84 14,225.96 14,225.96 | 100.00%| SL 0.020 10,551.44 284.52 284.52
1984 Installations 14,026.72 14,026.72 | 100.00%| SL 0.030 14,026.72 - -
1984-85 Expenditures Capitalized 24,095.45 - 0.00%| SL 0.030 24,094.45 - -
1985-86 Expenditures Capitalized 16,479.71 2,076.44 12.60%| SL 0.030 16,479.71 - -
1985-86 Const Capitalized 99,251.41 12,505.68 12.60%| SL 0.020 71,461.08 1,985.03 250.11
1985-86 Account Additions 33,085.29 4,168.75 12.60%| SL 0.020 23,821.56 661.71 83.38
1986-87 Capitalization 58,854.83 11,770.97 20.00%| SL 0.020 54,146.60 1,177.10 235.42
1987-88 Account Additions 35,168.65 7,033.73 | 20.00%| SL 0.020 23,914.58 703.37 140.67
1987-88 Capitalized Expenses 17,233.52 344670 | 20.00%| SL 0.020 11,718.78 344.67 68.93
1988-89 Additions 84,368.29 16,873.66 | 20.00%| SL 0.020 55,683.21 1,687.37 337.47
1988-89 Capitalized Expenses 25,002.05 5,000.41 20.00%| SL 0.020 16,501.32 500.04 100.01
1990-91 Additions 91,258.04 18,251.61 20.00%| SL 0.040 91,258.04 - -
1990-91 Capitalized Expenses 13,406.16 2,681.23 | 20.00%| SL 0.040 13,406.16 - -
1990-91 Water Tower 359,219.15 359,219.15 | 100.00% SL 0.020 241,935.68 7,184.38 7,184.38
1991-1992 Capitalized Expenses 13,142.81 2,628.56 | 20.00%| SL 0.040 13,142.81 - -
1991-1992 Additions 19,886.47 3,977.29 20.00%| SL 0.040 19,886.47 - -
97-98 high svc vertical motor repairs 6,413.72 6,413.72 | 100.00% SL 0.100 6,413.72 - -
98-99 repair to to high service pump 5,512.21 5,512.21 | 100.00%| SL 0.100 5,512.21 - -
99-00 raw water pump repair 18,757.00 18,757.00 | 100.00%| SL 0.100 18,757.00 - -
00-01 Rebuild pump 10,696.00 10,696.00 | 100.00%| SL 0.100 10,696.00 - -
01-02 Roof-water plant 15,740.00 15,740.00 | 100.00%| SL 0.040 12,277.20 629.60 629.60
02-03 Flocculator shafts/seals 9,447.00 9,447.00 | 100.00%| SL 0.100 9,447.00 - -
02-03 Pump - seal packing 3,228.00 3,228.00 | 100.00%| SL 0.100 3,228.00 - -
02-03 Painting water towers 526,103.17 526,103.17 | 100.00%| SL 0.040 389,316.40 21,044.13 21,044.13
04-05 WTP Filter Cells 6,403.50 6,403.50 | 100.00%| SL 0.100 6,403.50 - -
04-05 Raw Water Pump 14,410.00 14,410.00 | 100.00%| SL 0.100 14,410.00 - -
04-05 125HP pump 7,392,70 7,392,70 | 100.00%| SL 0.100 7,392.70 - -
05-06 High service pump WTP 13,589.00 13,589.00 | 100.00%| SL 0.100 13,589.00 - -
05-06 3 phase electric WTP 15,800.00 15,800.00 | 100.00%| SL 0.100 15,800.00 - -
05-06 WTP high service pump #2 13,886.00 13,886.00 | 100.00% SL 0.100 13,886.00 - -
05-06 High service pump WTP 9,933.50 9,933.50 | 100.00% SL 0.100 9,933.50 - -
The above items were included in the rate analysis that was performed for the FY ending June 30, 2006 Eub(otal 30,444.62—|
06-07 Clearwell Baffling 87,021.77 87,021.77 | 100.00%| SL 40.000 31,545.33 2,175.54 2,175.54
06-07 WTP Filter Media Renovations 47,110.22 47,110.22 | 100.00%| SL 10.000 47,110.22 - -
06-07 WTP Water Pump 21,560.00 21,560.00 | 100.00%| SL 10.000 21,560.00 - -
06-07 WTP Wireless Scada 14,258.00 14,258.00 | 100.00%| SL 10.000 14,258.00 - -
06-07 Raw Water Intake Motor Repairs 5,426.00 5,426.00 | 100.00%] SL 10.000 5,426.00 - -
06-07 Scada for Sunbeam Tank 7,293.75 7,293.75 | 100.00%| SL 10.000 7,293.75 - -
06-07 Fence for Sunbeam Tank 7,650.00 7,650.00 | 100.00%| SL 10.000 7,650.00 - -
The above items were included in the rate analysis that was performed for the FY ending June 30, 2008 rsubtotal r 32,620.16 I




Table 7 (Continued)
Leitchfield Utilities System
Schedule of Utilities System Depreciation

6/30/2022
Joint Use

Description Cost Cost Percent Method Rate/Yrs Prior Current Joint
High Energy Pump - WTP 13,796.00 13,796.00] 100.00%| SL 10.000 13,796.00 - -
Spectrophotometer 6,447.95 6,447.95| 100.00% SL 7.000 6,447.95 - -
Water Plant Tube Settlers 55,576.00 55,576.00| 100.00% SL 10.000 55,576.00 - -
Water Plant Electrical Upgrades / Modifications 103,494.82 103,494.82 100.00%| SL 40.000 29,323.53 2,587.37 2,587.37
The above items were included in the rate analysis that was performed for the FY ending June 30, 2010 mbtotal 35,207.53—|
Lagoon Pump - Taul Equipment 15,900.00 15,900.00 | 100.00%| SL 10.000 15,767.50 132.50 132.50
Lilac Road (Jr Foods) Water Tower Improvements 5,588.00 5,588.00 [ 100.00% SL 10.000 5,494.87 93.13 93.13
WTP - Generators for Back Up Power (CDBG Grant) 209,398.75 209,398.75 | 100.00% SL 20.000 97,719.44 10,469.94 -
WTP House Repairs (Storm Damage) 5,520.46 5,520.46 | 100.00%| SL 10.000 5,014.45 506.01 506.01
WTP - Motor for Raw Water Pump #2 8,872.00 8,872.00 | 100.00%| SL 10.000 8,058.69 813.31 813.31
The above items were included in the rate analysis that was performed for the FY ending June 30, 2014 subtotal 36,752.48
Add'l| WTP - Raw Water Intake Costs 40,013.31 40,013.31 | 100.00%| SL 40.000 3,501.16 1,000.33 1,000.33
Layne Christensen - Rebuild WTP HS Pump #1 18,164.00 18,164.00 | 100.00%| SL 10.000 2,573.23 1,816.40 1,816.40
The above items were included in the rate analysis that was performed for the FY ending June 30, 2017 subtotal 39,569.21—|
Sludge truck (Contrib Capital) Split w/ WTP/WWTP 56,899.00 56,899.00 | 100.00%| SL 0.020 23,897.58 1,137.98 1,137.98
1990-91 Water Tower (Contrib Capital) 13,050.00 13,050.00 | 100.00%| SL 0.020 5,481.00 261.00 261.00
FmHA Water Tank Grant (Contrib Cap) 83,030.69 83,030.69 | 100.00%| SL 0.020 34,872.81 1,660.61 -
96-97 Water intake completion 63,000.00 63,000.00 | 100.00%| SL 0.040 61,740.00 1,260.00 1,260.00
Water Tower-HT], Inc - Replace Telemetry at School St 10,500.00 10,500.00 | 100.00% SL 40.000 1,225.00 262.50 262.50
WTP-Radios for SCADA System 7,300.00 7,300.00 | 100.00%| SL 10.000 2,798.33 730.00 730.00
WTP - Dixie Chopper (XG2703-60) W/ Roll Bar 6,899.00 6,899.00| 100.00%| SL 10.000 6,899.00 - -
WTP High Service #3 Valve (Cl Thornburg) 5,415.72 5,415.72] 100.00%| SL 10.000 4,152.04 541.57 541.57
WTP New Starter (Heartland Electric) 6,375.00 6,375.00| 100.00%| SL 10.000 2,284.38 637.50 637.50
WTP - High Service #1 New Motor 125 HP 10,891.00 10,891.00 100.00%| SL 10.000 7,986.73 1,089.10 1,089.10
WTP - Motor RW Pump 1 Old Int 10,974.00 10,974.00| 100.00%| SL 10.000 7,316.00 1,097.40 1,097.40
WTP - New Lime Machine 11,719.20 11,719.20 100.00%| SL 10.000 7,519.82 1,171.92 1,171.92
WTP - Carbon Feeder Machine 13,803.55 13,803.55| 100.00%| SL 10.000 8,397.19 1,380.36 1,380.36
WTP-TW-15 Tractor Purchased from City / PW 12,000.00 12,000.00| 100.00%| SL 10.000 7.400.00 1,200.00 1,200.00
WTP/WWTP-Tanker Trailer VIN#9465 19,000.00 19,000.00 100.00%| SL 10.000 8,708.33 1,900.00 1,900.00
The above items were included in the rate analysis that was performed for the FY ending June 30, 2018 l total 52,238.54 I
WTP Cone Drive Gear Box 9,307.53 9,307.53 | 100.00%| SL 0.100 2,559.56 930.75 930.75
WTP Procat Mower 8,900.00 8,900.00 | 100.00%| SL 0.100 5,481.00 890.00 890.00
WTP Generator Repair at new intake 9,951.32 9,951.32 | 100.00%| SL 0.100 1,990.26 995.13 995.13

The above items were included in the rate analysis that was performed for the FY ending June 30, 2022

[ total

55,054.42 |




APPENDIX 2
Leitchfield Utilities Commission’s Audit for Year Ending June 30, 2022



LEITCHFIELD UTILITIES SYSTEM
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2022

Notice: These financial statements are aot to be reproduced (in part ore in full)
without written permission from Tavior, Polson & Company, PSC.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Commission
Leitchfield Utiities System
Letchield, Kertueky

Report on the Audit of the Financlal Statements

Opintons

We have autited the accomparying financial statements of the business-type activities and the major
fund of the Leitchfield Utilities System, a component unit of the City of Ledchfield, Kentucky. as of and
for the year ended June 30, 2022, and the related notes 1o the financial statements, which collectively
comprisa the Systern’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contants,

in our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, In all material respects, the
raspective financial position of the business-type activities and the major fund of the Leitchfied Litilties
Systam. as of June 30, 2022, and the respective changes in finarcial position, and cash flows thereaf
for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally acceptad in the United
States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accerdance with auditing standards generally acceptea in the United States
of America and the standards applcable to financal audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Compiroller General of the Usited States. Qur responsitaities under those
standards are funther described in the Audtor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report We are reguired to be independent of the Letchfieid Utilities System
and to meet our other ethical responsibiives, in accordarce with the relevant ethical reguirements
relating to our audit, We bebeve that the audil evidence we have obtained s sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Raspansibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Managemert is responsibie for the preparation and fair presentaton of the finarcial ststements n
accordance with accounting principles generally accepled in the United States of Amenca, and for the
design, implementation. and maintenance of internal control relevant fo the preparation and fair
presentation of financ al statements that are free from maternal misstatement, whether due to fracd or

&rror,
In preparnng the financial statements, maragement is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events. considered in the aggregale, that raise substartial coubt about the System's abdity to

continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial siatemeant date. including any
currently known information that may raise substantal dount shartly thereafter.
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To the Commission
Letchfield Utilities System

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements - Continued
Auvditor's Responsibiiities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are 10 oblain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whoie
are free from material misstatement, wheather due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's repen that
includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but s not absolule
assurance and therefore 18 not @ guarantes that an audit conducted in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards and Gavemmment Awditing Standards wil always detect & matenal
misstatement when it exists The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error. as fraud may involve collusion, fargery, intentiona’ omissions,
misrepresentations, or the cverride of internal control. Misstatements are considered matenal if there is
a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would infiuence the judgment made
by a reasonatle user based on the financial stalements.

In performing an audl in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government
Auditing Standards, we

»  Exercise professional judgment and mairtain professional skepticism throughout the audt.

J deptify and assess the risks of matena! misstatement of the financial statements, whether
dus to fraud or error, anc desigr and perform audit srocedures responsve (o those risks.
Such procedures include examining, an a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statemeants.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audt in order to design auait
procedyuras that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpcse of
expressing an opinien on the effectiveness of the System’s internal control Accordingly,
e such opinion is expressed.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of sccounting policies used and the reasonableress of
significant accounting estimates made by managsment. as wel as evaluale the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

U Conclude whether, in our judgmen:, thare are condtions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial deubt about the System's ability to continue as s going
goncern for a reasonable panod of time.

We are required to communicate with thoese charged with govemnance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significart audit findings, and certain internal cortrol-related
matters that we identifed during the audit

Required Suppiementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepled in the United States of America reguire that ihe
management's discussion and analysis and the persion and OPEB information on pages € - 10 and 37
- 42 be presented to supplement the tasic financial statements. Such ‘nformation is the responsibility
of management and, although rot 3 part of the basic financial statements, is recuired by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essental pant of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an apprognate operational, sconomic, or
historica! context. We have applied cedtain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accorgance with auditing stardards generally accepted in the United States of America,
which consisted of inquires of management sbout the methads of preparing the information and
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To the Commission
Leitchfield Utilities System

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements - Concluded

Required Supplementary Information - Cancluded

companng the infarmation for consistency with management's responses {¢ our inguiries. the basc
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial
staterments We do not express an opinion o provide any assurance on the information because the
limited proceduras do not provide us with sufficient evidence to exprass an opinion or provide any

assurance,

Suppiementary Infarmation

Cur audit was corducted for the purpose of forming opinions con the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Ledchfieid Utiities System's basic financial statements. The supp'ementary
schedu'e of expenses and schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U S Code
of Federal Regulations Par. 200 Uniform Administrative Reguirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Reguirements for Federal Awards, are presenied for purpeses of addtional analysis ang are nof a
required part of the basic fnancial statements Such information is the responsibility of managament
ang was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used ©
prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected (o the auditng procedures
appiieg in the audit of the basic financial stalements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such infermation dicectly to the underlying accounting and other records
used 1o prepare the basic financial statements or to the basie fnancial statements themselves, and
cther addtional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the Unded
States of America In our opinion, the supplementary schedule of expenses and the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial
statements as a whols,

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also 'ssued our rapont datea February 8,
2023, on our consideration of the Leitchheld Utities System's internal control over financial reporting
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws. regulations, contracts, and grant
agreaments and other maters. The purpese of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing
of internai control over financial reporting and compliance and the resulis of that testing, and rol 1o
provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Leichfield Utilites System's internal control over
financial repoing or on complisnce.  That report I8 an integral par of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Leitchfield Utiities System's internal
control aver financial reporting and compliance,

M{ %ﬂmﬁ Cm»pnma P

Certified Fublic Accountanis
Glasgow, Kentucky
Febtruary 8, 2023
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS -
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

The Ledchfield Utilities System: (System) offers readers of the System's financial statements this
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Sysiem for the fisca! year ended
June 30, 2022 Management's Discussion and Analysis should be read in conjunclion with the
financial statements.

in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No 34 (GAZB 34), the
Systemn is presenting a comparative analysis. The GASB 34 format is intended to provide mproved

mformation to users.,

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

» Tolal assets of cur business-type activities were approximately $38.2 million at June 30, 2022,
as compared to approximately $37.2 million at June 30, 2021,

« Tolal revenues for the twelve months ended June 30, 2022, were approximately $10.14 million
as compared o approxmately $6.85 million at June 30, 2021. Total revenues for the twelve
menths ended June 30, 2022, were comprised of approximately $4.88 miliion of water
reverues, §1 92 milion of sewer revenues, and 33.34 millon of gas revenues.

» Total expenses for all degariments ware approximately 37 44 million for the tweive months
ended Jure 30, 2022, as compared to 35.8 million for the twelve months ended Jurme 30, 2021,
Total expenses for the twelve monrths ended June 30, 2022, were comprised of appraximataly
$2.41 millior of water expenses, $2.17 milon of sewer expenses. and $2.86 milion of gas

SXpensgs,

« For the twelve months ended June 30, 2022, the System made approximately 33 0% mullien in
capita! acquisitions compnsed primarily of the following: improvements o the water system
$7,104. sewar system $44.024, gas system $8 388, equipment 321,874, and carstruction in
progress $3.01 miliian,

» Total net posiion for the System at June 30, 2022, was approximately 31987 mitlion as
compared o approxmately 317.56 million at June 302021,

« The System had a combined total net income of 32,404 506 for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2022, The Statement of Cash Fiows for the proprigtary fund shows a net incraase in cash ang
cash egquivalents for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022 of 3671, Please refer to the
Staterment of Cash Flows for a detai'ed explanation of the changes in cash flow.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, an¢ Changes in Net
Pestion are produced using the accrual method of accounting, which is similar {0 the accounting used
oy most private-sector companies. The accrual methad of accounting reports revenues ang expenses
when they are incurred, regardless of when cash s received or paig

The Statement of Net Position provides information on ail assets and liabilities, with the differsnce
reported as net position. The Statement of Reverues, Expensas, and Uhanges in Net Position reflects
how the assets have changed through the fiscal year. Increases or dacreases in assels cver time are
one indicator of whether the System's financial status is ‘mproving. stagnating. or detericrating. Other
non-financial factors should also be considered, such as changes in the condition of the System's
infrastructure, to assess the gverall financial status of the Systam.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

The net pasiton for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, is summarized as follows’

NET POSITION
5-30.22 65-30-21
ASSETS
Current and Other Assets 4650725 4 523 468
Noncurren! Assels 7.588 748 7728308
Capital Assets, Netl of Depreciation 26 968 411 24 973,878
Total Assets 39,188,882 37,226,452
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 1,449,148 1,538,163
LIABILITIES
Current and Other Liabilities 74T 038 1,088,060
Long-Term Lizbilitiss 18.748.038 19800412
Total Liabilities 19,486,071 20,888,472
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESQURCES 1,174,760 313,450

NET POSITION
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of

Related Deb: 13.073.911 10,447 858
Rastricted ¥.588 748 7,728,305
Unrestacted {Deficit) {  B78.458) { B14.487;

Total Net Position 18,967,199 17,562,693
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
A summary of revenues and expenses for the fiscal years ended June 30 2022 and 2027, is as
follows:

OPERATING RESULTS

6-30-22 §-30:21
REVENUES ‘
Operating Revenues 7.405.370 6,743,718
Non-Operating Revenues 2,735,985 _116.517
Total Revenues 10,141,385 6,854,235
EXPENSES
OCperating Expenses 7444 463 8,945 125
Noa-Operating Expenses ... 292,356 ...280,576
Total Expenses 7,736,859 7,525,701
TRANSFERS . O . T
CHANGE IN NET POSITION 2,404,506 [ 671,466)
NET POSITION - BEGINNING OF YEAR 17,562,893 18,234,159
NET POSITION - END OF YEAR 19,967,198 17,562,683

Total revenues increased from approximately $6.800,000 for the fiscal year ended Jure 30, 2021, o
approximately $10,140 GO0 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022. The increase of approximately
$3,240.000, or 48.8%, is primarily from an increase in waler and sewer revenues due fo an increase in
rates and receipt of $2 7 milion in grant funds. Total expenses were approximately $7.7 milian for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, as compared ta $7.5 million in the prior year.

The ‘argest program in the businass-type activity s the operation of a municipal ratural gas sysem.
which accounted for 43 8% of business-type expenses for the fiscal year enged Jure 30, 2022 The
water system accounted for 30.8% and the sewer system accounted for 25.8% of business-type
expenses for the fiscal year enged June 30, 2022

In July 2002, the Grayson County Water District {District} began operating s own water treatment
piant. The System completes a wholesale rate study biennally in order to review the rate charged to
the District. The rate was increased by approximately 3.3% in February 2020,

The water system's operating revenue increased by approximalely 2.27% for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2022, as compared to an increase of approximately 2.8% for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2021, The water system's operating expenses increased by 0.8% for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2022, as compared to an increase of 3.33% for the fiscal year endeg June 30, 2021. The System
regularly monitors the percentage of gallons produced versus soid. The System contnually strives to
reducea the diference in the number of gallons produced versus the number of galions of water sold.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONCLUDED

The sewer syslem's aperaling revenue increased by approxmately 1.66% for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2022, as compared to an increase of approximately 10.73% for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2021, Operating expenses for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, decreased by apgroximately
C.48%, as compared to an increase of approximately 1.65% for the fiscal year ended June 30 2021

The gas system's operating revenue increased by approximately 21.88% fur the fiscal year ended June
30, 2022 as compared to a decrease of approximately 2.5% for the fiscai year ended June 30, 2021,
Additionally, the System has locked in a range of 80 - 75% of the System's projected natural gas load
for January 2023 through June 2023, the upcoming healing season, at 8 weighisd average price of
$2.84/Dth. The System purchases natural gas on a conservative basis in an effort o protect
customers from major price increases. The System continually monitors the natura’ gas market and
sondtians in order to determing when natural gas should be purchased.

OTHER ECONOMNIC FACTORS

As of June 30, 2022, the System hadg 2,485 residential. 424 commercial, and 18 ndustna’ water
customers. The Grayson County Water Distngt is the anly wholesale water customer. The System
had 2 418 sewer customers and 2 297 natural gas customers. For the year ended June 30, 2022, the
Systern had seen an incraase in water customers by 5, a decrease in sewer customers by 10 ard an
increase 0 natural gas customears by 114

CAPITAL ASSETS

All capttal assets over $5,000 are capitalized at cost and updated for additions and retirements during
the year. Improvements are capitalized, but the costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not
agd to the value of the asset or materally extend an asset's life are not capitalized Depreciation
expense is taken in amounts 10 spread the cost of the capital assets to operations over their estimated
usefu! ives on the straight-line basis, Some of the additions to capital assets for the fiscal years ended
June 3¢, 2022 and 2021, are as foliows:

6-30-22 6-30-21
Water System Improvements 7.104 40,714
Sewer System Improvements 13,695 35770
Gas System Improvements £,369 33536
Vehicles 12,574 -
Equipment 35,830 248,730
Construction in Progress 3.013,844 4,811,859

Please refer to Note § for the schedule of additions ana celetions te capital assets for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2022, Beok vaiues ang applicable depreciation expense can also be found in Note &

NET PENSION LIABILITY
At June 30, 2022 per GASE Statement No. 88 and GASH Staterment No. 71, the Sysiem reported a

hability for its proportionata share of the net pension liability for CERS. The amount recognized by the
System as its proportionate share of the net pension liability was $3,518 030
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - CONCLUDED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

NET OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS LIABILITY
At June 30, 2022, per GASB Statement No. 75, the System reparted a hability for its proporfionate

share of net OPEB hability for CERS  The amount recognized by the System as its groportionate
share of the net OPEB liability was $6 058,106

DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Please refer 1o Note 8 for the schedule to amortize revenue bonds and notes payable outstanding as of
June 30, 2022, incluging interest payments,

CONTACTING THE LEITCHFIELD UTILITIES SYSTEM'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financal report 's designed to provide a general overview of the Leitchfield Utiites System’s
finrances for all those interested. Questions concerming any of the information provided in this report or
regquests for additiona! information should be addressed to Lor Woosley, City Clerk, P O Box 398,
Leitchfield, Kentucky 42755-0368.
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - PROPRIETARY FUND
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LEITCHFIELD UTILITIES SYSTEM
{A COMPONENT UNIT OF CITY OF LEITCHFIELD, KENTUCKY])
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUND
JUNE 30, 2022

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Trade Receivables, Netl
Ciher Recewvables
Accrued interest Recaivable
Frapad Expenses
Deposits
Inventories - Supples

Total Current Assets
HON-CURRENT ASSETS
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents
Capital Assets _
Land ard Construction in Progress
Other Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation
Total Non-Current Assets
TOTAL ASSETS
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Detferred Qutflows - Pension
Deferred Qutflows - OPEB

TOTAL DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

T
e
3

Pags 12

Enterprise

—tnd

3,813.170
324,682
121,005

1,647
LER-TE

5

£

311946

4,650,725

7,563,746

13,054 871
13913440

E
34,538,157
39,188,882

770,303
6785 845



CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts Payatle
Accrued Payrol!
Accrued Vacation Payable
Accrued Interest Payabile
Other Accrued Expenses
Current Portion of Long-Term Dabt

Total Current Liabilities

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Bonds and Noles Payable
Customers’ Deposit Liability
Net Pension Liakilty
Net OPES Liabilty
Due on Sewer and Water Line Construction

Total Non-Current Liabllities
TOTAL LIABILITIES
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESCURCES
Deferred inflows - Pansion
Ceterred Inflows - DPER
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOQURCES
NET POS!TIQN
Invested in Capita! Assets, Net o Related Debt
Restricted for Capita! Qutiay
Restricted for Debl Service
Unrastricted {Deficit)

TOTAL NET POSITION

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESQURCES, AND NET POSITION

See accompanying notes to financia! statements
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LEITCHFIELD UTILITIES SYSTEM

{A COMPONENT UNIT OF CITY OF LEITCHFIELD, KENTUCKY}
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Enterprise Fund

_ Water  Sewer Gas _Total
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for Services 2,248,091 1,573,217 3,218 417 7,040,725
Miscellansous Revenues 14,870 338 821 10,854 254 B4h
Total Operating Revenues 2,262,961 1,812,038 3,230,371 7,405,370
OPERATING EXPENSES
System Operations 1,207,488 856,388 2112826 4,178,712
Geaneral Operating 131,223 137,402 104 807 373432
General and Admiristrative 686,287 614,775 491 845 1,792 GOB
Depreciation 385,104 560,225 155,082 1,901,411
Total Operating Expenses 2,410,112 2,168,790 2,865,561 7,444,463
OPERATING INCOME {LOSS) (147,151) ( 256,752) 364,810 (  38,093)
NON-OPERATING REVENUES {(EXPENSES)
Interast Income 3.380 3,380 2883 G643
Gain on Sale of Assels 2,083 2,083 1.0B3 5249
Grant income 2,816,483 - 104,620 2.721,103
Interest Expense { 287 348) { 4,272} . { 281.618)
Debt issuance Cost { 778 - { 778)
Transfars - e
Total Non-Operating
Revenues {Expenses) 2,333,822 1.181 108,586 2,443 599
CHANGES IN NET POSITION 2,186,671 ( 255561} 473,396 2,404,506

NET POSITION - BEGINNING OF YEAR

MNET POSITION - END OF YEAR

See accompanying notes to financial statements,
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LEITCHFIELD UTILITIES SYSTEM

{A COMPONENT UNIT OF CITY OF LEITCHFIELD, KENTUCKY)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash Recawed from Customears
Cash Payments to Employees for Services
Cash Payrments to Suppliers for Goods and Services

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

CASHFLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of Capital Assets
Proceeds from Sale of Asses
Principal Paid on Dabt
erest Pad on Debt
Dent lssuance Cost
Decrease i Dus on Sewer and Water Line Construction
Grant income
Transfers

Net Cash Used by Capital and Related Financing Activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
interest Income
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR

TEEE Pags 15
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RECONCILIATION OF QPERATING INCOME 70
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cperating Income {Lass)
Adjusiments to Reconcile Operaung income
to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Cash ard cash equivalents consisted of the following at the beginning and end of the year,

TPAC

Depreciation

Changes in Assels and Liabilities
Rereivables, Net
Cther Recewables
Prepad Expenses
Deposits with Others
inventoneas - Supplies
Fension Deferred Outflows
OPEB Deferrea Cutflows
Accounis Payagle
Accrued Payrol
Accrued Yacation Payatle
Cther Accrued Expenses
Custamers’ Degasit Liability
MNet Pension Liability
Net OPEB Liability
Parsion Deferred Infows
OPEE Deferred Inflows

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

7-1:21 $.30-22
{ash 3,852 B34 3,813,170
Restricted Cash 7.728 306 7568746
11,382,245 11,382,216

See accompanying notes fo financia’ statements
Page 15
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LEITCHFIELD UTILITIES SYSTEM
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF CITY OF LEITCHFIELD, KENTUCKY]}
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2022

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Lettchlisld (tilities Systerm (Utilities System or System) i3 a discretely presented component
unit of the City of Leitchfield, Kentucky {City}. The System is governed by a five-member utility
comrmission. consisting of the Mayor of Leitchfield, Kentucky, and four other members appointed
and approved by the Mayor and City Courcil. The System provides water, sewer, and natural gas
services to residents of Leitchfield, Kentucky, and surrounding areas.

The basic financial statements of the Laitekfield Utihties System have been prepared in conformity
with accounting principies generally accepied in the United States of Amarca (GAAP) as appled
to government units. The Govemmeantal Accounting Standards Board (GASE) is the sccepted
standarg-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles,
The more signficant of the System’s accounting policies are described below.

Reporting Entity

The pasic financial statements are those of the Letchiield Uliltes System and do not represent
{he operations of the City of Lestchfield, Kentucky, The System s presented as a discrete
component unit of the City of Leitehfield, Kentucky., The City of Leitchfield, Kentucky. prepares its
own financial statements. which may be obtained at Letchfield City Hall, P O Box 398, Leitchfielg,
rentucky 42755-0398

Fund Accounting

The Leitchfield Utities System is ciassitied by the Governmental Accounting Standards Hoard as
a proprietary fund. Proprietary funds are used to account for operations (a) that are primarily
financag by user charges and operated in a manner similar to private busness enterprises -
where the intent of the governing body s that the costs {expenses, including depreciation) of
providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered
primarily through user charges or (b} where the governing body has deciged that penodic
adetermination of revenues eamad, expenses ingurred, and/or net income is appropriate for sapital
maintenance, public policy, management contrel, accauntability, or other purposes.

Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures or expenses are recognized n the
accounts and reported in the financial statements. Basis of accounting relates {o tha timing of the
measuremenis made, regardiess of the measurement focus applied. This propretary fund uses
the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. The revenues
are recognized when they are earned, and the expenses are recognized when they are incured,

Due fromito Primary Government

Amaunts owed between the primary government [City) and s component unt {System) are
classified as "due fromito primary government” on the Statement of Net Position. At year-end, the
System reported ro amount due to the primary governmeant, and no amount due frem the primary
government.

Accounts Receivable

Trade recevanies are shown net of an allowance for uncollectivle accounts of $10,318 Portiens
¢t the trade accounts receivable in excess of sixty days comprise the allowance for uncolleciible
accounts. Accounts over five years old are written off.

TP&C Page 17



LEITCHFIELD UTILITIES SYSTEM
{A COMPONENT UNIT OF CITY OF LEITCHFIELD, KENTUCKY]}
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
JUNE 30, 2022

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

Inventories

The inventories are composed of supplies used for routine maintenance and repars ard are
valued at cost using the FIFQ (first in-first out} method or market, whichever is lower,

Prepaid Expenses

Certain paymenis to vendors reflect costs apphcable to future sccounting periods and are
recorded as prepaid expenses.

Capital Assets

The accounting ang reporting treatment applied o capdal assets associated with a fund are
determined by its measuremant {ocus,

Al capital assets over $5,00C are capitalized at cost {or estimated historical cost) and updated for
additions and retirements during the year. Donated fixed assets are recorded at their fair marxet
values as of the date received. Improvements ate captalzed, byt the costs of rormal
maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extand an asset's
lifa are not.

Depraciation is provided in the proprietary fund in amounts sufficient o relate the cost of the
depreciable assets to operations over ther estimated sarvice lives on the straight-line basis. The
service ves by type of asset are as follows:

Equipment 510 Years
Site Improvements 7-40 Years
Buildings 7-40 Years
Furniture and Equipment 7-20 Years
Distribution Systems 050 Years

Deferred Qutflows and Inflows of Resources

Ag defined by GASH Concept Statement No. 4, Elements of Financial Statements, deferred
outfiows of resources and deferred inflows of resources are the consumption of net position by the
government that are applicable to a future reporting perned and an acquisition of net position by
the government that are applicable to a future reporting period. respectivaly.

In additian to assets, the Statemant of Net Positon will somatimes report a separate section for
deferrad cutflows of resources. This separate financial statemant slement, deferred cutflows of
resources, represants a consumption of net position that applies 'a a future peroois) and so will
not be recognizes as an autfiow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then,  The Unides
System currenily has two types of deferred outfiows of resources: The Utilites System reports
deferred pension and OPESB charges in its Statement of Net Position o connection with ds
participation in the County Employee Retitament Systern, These deferred pension and OPEB
charges are ether (a) recognized in the subsequent pencd as a recuction of the nel pension
liability {(which includes pension coniributions made after the measurement gate) or (L) amortizes
in a systematic and rational method as pension expense in future periads in accordance with
GAAP

TR&C Page 18



LEITCHFIELD UTILITIES SYSTEM
{A COMPONENT UNIT OF CITY OF LEITCHFIELD, KENTUCKY)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
JUNE 30, 2022

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

Deferred Qutflows and Inflows of Resources - Concluded

in addition to habilties, the Statement of Nat Pasition wil sometmes report 2 separate section for
deferred inflows of resources.  This separate financal statement elemen!, deferred inflows of
resources, rapresenis an goquisition of net position that applies o a fuiure period(s) and 30 will not
be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.  The Utilities System currantly
has two types of deferred inflows of resources: The Utilities System reporis deferred pension and
OPEB credits in i1s Statement of Net Position in connection with ts participation in the County
Employee Retirement Systerm These deferred pension and OPEB credits are amortized in a
systematic and rational method and recogrized as a reduction of pension expenss in futura
neriods In accordance with GAAR.

Net Position

Net position represents the difterance between assels and jabilihes, Net position invested in
capital assels, net of related debt, consists of captal assets less accumuiated depreciation,
reduced by the outstanding balances of any borrowings used for the acquisition, construction or
improvement of these assets. Net position s reported as restricted when there are ireitatans
impased on the use either through enabling legislation adopted by the System or through extermal
restriclions mpased by creditors, grantors, or laws and regulations of other governmants.
Unrestricted net position are those assels that do not meet the definiticn of “restricted” or
“irwested in capital assets, net of related debt.”

Pensions

In goverrment-wide tnancial staterments, pensions are required to be recagnized and disclosed
using the accrual basis of accounting (see Nofe 8 and the required supplementary information
immediately following the notes to the fingncial statements for mare information), regardiess of the
amount recognized as pension expenditures on the medified accrual basis of accountirg. The
Utilties System recognizes a net pension liability for the pension plans in which it participates,
which represents the Utilites System's proportionate share of a cost-sharing multiple-employer
slans, measured as of the Uliities System’'s fiscal year-end Changes in the net pension liability
during the perod are recorded as pension expense, or as deferred outflows or inflows of
resources depending on the nature of the change, in the penod incurreg.  Those changes n nat
pansion liability that are recorded as deferred outflows or inflows of resources that arise from
changes n actuaral assumplions or ather inputs ang differences between expected or actual
experience are amortized over the weighted average remaining service life of all participants in
the respestive qualified pension plan and recorded as a component of persion expense beginning
with the peried in which they are incurred. Projected earings on qualified pension plan
invesiments are recognized as a component of pension expense. Differences between projetted
and actual investment earnings are reported as deferred outflows or inflows of resources and
amortized as a comgponent of pension expense on a closed bass over a five-year penod
beginning with the perod in which the difference ccourred.

Other Postemployment Benefits Plan

in govermment-wide financial statements, OPEBs are reguired to be recognized and disclosed
using the accrual basis of accourting (see Note B ang required supplementary information
immediately fallawing the notes {o the financial statements for more information), regargiess of the
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LEITCHFIELD UTILITIES SYSTEM
{A COMPONENT UNIT OF CITY OF LEITCHFIELD, KENTUCKY)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
JUNE 30, 2022

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONCLUDED

Qther Postemployment Benefits Plan - Concluded

amount recognized as OPEB expendiures on the modified accrual basis of zocounting. The
Utilities System recognizes a ret OPEB liabilty for the OPEB insurance plan in which o
participates. which represents the Ublities System's proportiorate share of a cost-sharing multip'e-
employer plan, measured as of the Utiiities System’s fiscal year-end  Charges in the net QPER
liability during the pericd are recorded as OPEB expense, or as deferred outficws or inflows of
resources depenaing on the nature ¢f the change, in the perigd incurred. Those charges in net
QOPESB habity that are recorded as deferred outflows or wfiows of resources thal anse from
changes in actuarial assuimplions or other inputs and differences betwoen expected or actual
experignce are amorized over the weighled average remaining service life of all participanrts in
the respective qualfied OPEB plan and recorded as a comporent of OPER expenss beginning
with the period in which they are ircurred.  Projected eamings on qualfied OPEBR plan
investments are recognized as a camponent of OPEB expenss.  Diffsrences between projecied
and acwal nvestmeant earnings are reperied as deferred autflows or inflows of resources and
amortized as a component of OPEB expsnse on & closed basis over a five-year period beg rning
with the pericd in which the differences occurred.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financia: statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates ang assumptions that affect certain reportad
amounts and disclosures. Accordingly. actual results could differ from those estimates.

2. CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

Tne System provides water, sewer, and natural gas senaces to a diverse group of customers,
The number and relatively small sze of most accounts should prevent credit problems ol any
single customer craating a hardshig on the System's cash flow. Two exceptions are that three
industrial customers account for approximately one-fifth of the System's gross charges for
services, and the Grayson County Water District purchased approximately 3452 00C of water
{19% of the water systemn's operating revenues) for the year ended June 30, 2022, Alsg, the
Utilities System customers are mastly in the Leitchfield, Kentugky. and surrounding area, and is
business is subject to the general economic conditions of a single cammunity.

3. BUDGETARY PROCEDURES AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING
The System follows these procedures in establishing budgetary data.

Normally priar to June 30, the Cnairman subnuts to the Utities Commission a prapoesed operating
budget for the proprietary fund for the fiscal year commencing July 1. The operating budge!
includes preposes expenses and the means for financing them. Deficit budgets are contrary o
state law. Public heanngs are conducted to abtain oitizen comments on the proposed budget and
the budget s legally adopted along with other funds through passage of an apprapnation
ardinance by the City Council,
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LEITCHFIELD UTILITIES SYSTEM
{A COMPONENT UNIT OF CITY OF LEITCHFIELD, KENTUCKY)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
JUNE 30, 2022

3. BUDGETARY PROCEDURES AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING - CONCLUDED

Actual experses and operating transfers may not legally exceed “budget” appropriations al the
individug! fund level. Budgetary conirpl, however, is maintained at the deparnment ievel
Apprepriations lapse at the ciose of the fiscal year to the extent thal they have not been
wxpanded.

4. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The Utilties Systam considers cash and cash equivalents 10 be cash on hand, demand deposits,
ang certhoates of depasit.

At June 30, 2022, the reported amount of the Utilities System’s bank deposits was $11.375.37
and the bank balance was $11,508 324, The System also hag $7 538 of cash on hano at year
end

Custedial credit risk s the sk that in the event of a bank failure, the System’s deposits may not
be returned to &4 The System does not bave a deposit policy for custodial credi risk. At year end,
deposits of the Systerm were either insured or collateralized with securties pledged to the System
by the custodial banks.

Restricted Assets

The Systern has resiricted cash to salisfy varicus legal requiremenis established by bond
ordinance or agreements. Construction accounts are reserved for specific canstruction projects

Investments

Pursuant to the requirements of KRS 66 480, the Leitchtield Utilitizs System adopted a polioy that
govems invesiments of the Systam’s funds [t is the policy of the System to invest public funds in
a manner which will provide the highest invesiment retum with the maximum security of principal
while meeting the daly cash flow demands of the System and conforming to all state statutes ang
ine City of Leiichfeld requlations gaverring the investment of public funds.
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LEITCHFIELD UTILITIES SYSTEM
{A COMPONENT UNIT OF CITY OF LEITCHFIELD, KENTUCKY}
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
JUNE 30, 2022

5. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, was as follows:

Balance ~Balance
7421 LAdditions Delgtions 6-30-22

Not Depreciated:

Land and Rights-of-Way 456,513 - - 458,513
Caonstruction in Progress 10.0185.850 3013644 . 13033834
j vaw 7;65@3 wa.m.mmimsﬁ‘ﬁ RS ?314&)*1 ‘7

Depreciated:
Wastewater System 18,645,043 13,695 - 16 658,738
Water System 16,586,745 7,404 139,806 16463 847
Gas System 3,655 488 8,369 - 3,863,857
squipment 2,379.282 39,620 8,246 2410668
Vehicles 807.517 12,574 32.951 BBY 140
Land impravements . 128.839 — s 129,835
42 313,918 eI 181,103 42,214,187
Accumulated Depreciation 27,816,743 1,101,411 181,103 28,737,051
Net Capital Assets 24,973,678 1,893,605 N 26,967,283

Capital asse? bock values were summanzed at June 30 2022, as follows:

Accumulated Book |

Basis Depreciation Yalue

Wastewaler System 18,658,738 13,086 814 8872124
Watar System 16,4683 847 10,313,060 B.150 837
Gas System 3,663,857 2,926,287 737,570
Equipment 2410666 1,584,998 B25 568
Vehicles 887,140 738,439 150 701
Land Improvements 129839 .. 88653 .40 86
42,214,187 28,737,081 13,477,138

Changes in accumulated depreciation for the year ended June 30, 2022, were as follows:

Balance Current Year Balance

T1-21 Expunse Deletions 65-30-22
Wastewatar System 12,608,527 478087 . 13,085 814
Water System 10,145,629 306 585 134,454 10,313,080
Gas System 2,852,342 73,545 - 2,926 287
Equipment 1,415,158 178,085 8,245 1,584 998
Vehicles 705,005 63,258 31,824 736 439
Land Improvements ... 89782 1,451 1580 . B9853
#ele4s  T0iaT 18103 28737051
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LEITCHFIELD UTILITIES SYSTEM :
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF CITY OF LEITCHFIELD, KENTUCKY)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
JUNE 30, 2022

6. NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

Revenue Bonds Payable
The construction cosis of the Utlities System's water, sewer, and gas facildies have been
financed by issuance of revenue bonds authorized under Kentucky Revised Statutes. Al assets
of the Utilties System are pledged as collateral for these bonds.

On February 10, 1897 the System issued $2.880,000 in revenue bonds as the Series Bongs of
1995, Proceads of this issue were used to repay interm financing of water system improvements,
and the bonds will be repac over forty years with an interest rale of 4.5%. On July 8, 2074, the
bonds were refunded with the new 52,310,000 City of Leitchfield. Kentucxy Combired Utilities
Systern Refunding Revenue Bonds, Senes 2014, Proceeds of these bonds were used to repay
the 1905 Series bonas. The bonds will ba repaid over twanty-two years with iterest due semi-
annually on May ' and November 1 each year with princigal maturing on November 1 each year.
Interest rates will range fram 15 to 4% cver the iife of the bonds.

In June 2012, the System issued revenue bonds in the agaregale principal amount of $2 710,000,
corsisting of $1.980,000 Seres A bonds and $750,000 Senes B bonds for the purpose of
corstructing a raw waler intake sysiem. The bonds will be repaid over forty years at an interast
rate of 2%,

In June 2021, the System issued revenue bonds in the aggregate amount of $10, 103000,
consisting of $5 564 000 Series 2018A bonds and $4,539.000 Series 20198 bonds for the
purpose of constructing a water freatment plant.  The bonds will be repaia ovar 40 years at an
interest rate of 1.75%.

All receipts for services are to be deposited into the Revenue Furd and then disbursed to the
Sinking Fund, Deprecialion Furd, ard Ogeraton and Maintenance Fund as cuthined in the
cavenants of the bend ordinances.

Due on Sewer and Water Line Construction

Amounts due on sewer and water line construction represent balances due to industriog and
privale bulders for sewer and water lines. When the lines wers complsted, they were turned over
io the Utilities Sysiem by the builders with the provisions that the tuilders are to be rembursed at
e rate of 72% of the revenue from those lines unlit the tofal Lability is liquidated These
contracts ars non-interest bearing.
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LEITCHFIELD UTILITIES SYSTEM
{A COMPONENT UNIT OF CITY OF LEITCHFIELD, KENTUCKY)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
JUNE 30, 2022

6. NONCURRENT LIABILITIES - CONCLUDED

Changes in Long-Term Debt and Other Noncurrent Liabilities
Changes in long-term debt and other noncurrent Habilties were as foliows:

Balsrce " Balanco B in
7321 Additions  Reductions  6-30.22 e Yoar
Revenue Bonds 14,201,000 . 308,500 13.854.500 316 500
Notes Payabie
KIA 354619 315,919 . -
GCOWD 8903 8,803 : -
Net Fension Ligbility 4020724 502,684 3,518,030
Net OPEB Liabiity 1.285470 209384 1,066,106
Customers’ Deposit
Liability 543,550 60,830 40.300 584 180
Due on SewerWater
Lire Construction 3480 - 1,781 z2v2; -
20,380,067 80,930 1385461 75065536 316,500

Noncurrent hatilities other than long-term debt have been liquidatad in the Proprietary Fund. The
amount due within one year for the net pension fiability, customers’ depesit latdity, and dus on
sewer and water line constructicn could not be determined.

Annual Requirements

The annual requrements 1o amortize revenue bonds outstanding as of Jupe 30, 2022, including
interest payments, are as follows:

Due Date Totai |

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Requiremant f
2023 318,500 274,G30 580,530
2024 321,000 267,241 588,241
2025 330,800 2228613 553,113
2026 334,500 260,731 595,231
2027 345,500 250,934 595,434
2028-2032 1,857,500 1,146,183 3,003,682
2033-20357 2,114 000 SOE 447 3,022 441
2038-2042 1,613.000 G80,444 2,283 444
2043.2047 1,775,000 525114 2,304 114
2048-2082 1,968,000 338,414 2,307 414
20853-2057 1,588,000 188,550 1.7584,550
2058-2081 1,348,000 o A2.743 -1.380.743
Totat 13,894,600 5,105,438 18,898,938
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LEITCHFIELD UTILITIES SYSTEM
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF CITY OF LEITCHFIELD, KENTUCKY)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
JUNE 30, 2022

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

As explained in Note 1, the System is a campenent unit of the City of Leitchfield, Kentucky. The
System reimoursed the City $117.381 and §1,517 for its share of payroll and miscelanecus
expenses, respectively. The System also paid $54 0G0 in rent to the City for its use of the
facilties, and $51,228 for cooupational taxes.

The City pad the System $46.250 for utility services.

The Tourism Commission {anather component unit of the City} paid $24 215 for wtility services,

RETIREMENT PLAN

Defined Benefit Pension Plan
County Employees’ Retirement System

Pension Plan Description and Benefits

The Leiichfield Utlities System (System} is a participant in the Commonwealth of Kentucky's
County Employees’ Retfirerment System (CERS), a cost-shatng multiple-employver public
employes relirement system. CERS /s administered by the Kentucky Public Pension Authority
Board of Trustees pursuant o KRS 78.510-76852. Al full-tme emplayses are requred io
parsopate in the Flan as well as any part<ime employees who average one hundred or more
hours per month,  The Plan provides for retirement, gisability, and death benefits to plan
members. Retirernent benefits may be extended fo beneficiaries of plan members under cettain
circumsiances. Cost of living adjustiments are grovided at the discretion of the State Jegislature.
Benefits fully vest upon reaching five years of service and are establishad by state statute
Benefits are based on a factor of the number of years' service and hire date multiphied by the
average of the highest five years' earnings. Reduced benefits are based on factors of poth of

these componants,

Participating employees become eligible to receive the health insurance tereftt after at lzast 180
months of service, Death benefits are provided for both death after retirement and death pror to
retrement. Desth benefils after retrement are $5,000 in lump sum, Five years' sermvice s
required for death benefits prior to retirement and the employes must have suffered a duty-relatec
death. The decedent's teneficiary will receive the higher of the normal death benefits ang
$13,000 plus 25% of the decedent's monthly final rate of pay and any dependent child will raceive
10% of the decedent’s manthly final rate of pay up to 40% for all dependert children. Fue years'
service is required for nonservice-related disanility benefits

The Kentucky Public Pension Authority (KPPA) issues a publicly available financial report that
includes financial statements and required supplamentary information for CERS. The report is
availatie at www Kyret ky qov or by writing to Kentucky Public Pension Authoritys, Premier Park
Wesst, 1260 Louisville Road, Frankfort, Kentucky 40601, CERS prepares its financial statements
in accardanca with GASH statements and generally accepted accounting princigies. The accrual
bas’s of accounting is used for all funds. Contributions are recogrized when dug, pursuant to
stawtory requirements, Benefits are recognized in the month they are earned and withdrawals
are recognizad in the menth they are due and payable. Investments are recognized at fair valus
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LEITCHFIELD UTILITIES SYSTEM
{A COMPONENT UNIT OF CITY OF LEITCHFIELD, KENTUCKY)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
JUNE 30, 2022

8. RETIREMENT PLAN - CONTINUED

Pension Plan Description and Benefits - Concluded
For relirement purposes, employees are grauged into three tiers, based on hire date:

Non-Hazardous
Tiar 1 Participation date Before September 1, 2008
Unreduced retirement 27 years of service or 85 years old
Reduced retirement At teast § years of service and §5 years old

or at least 28 years of service and any age

Tier 2 Participation date September 1, 2008 - December 31. 2013
Unreduced retirement At least & years of service and €5 years old
or age 57+ and sum of service years plus age

equal 87
Reduced retirement At ieast 10 years of service and 60 years oid
Tier 3 Participation date Afier Decamber 31, 2013

Unreduced retirement At least § years of service and 5 years old
or age 57+ and sum of service years plus age
enual 87
Reduced retirement Naot available

Contributions - Required contributions by the employee are pased on the lier
Non-Hazardous

Tier 1 %
Tier 2 5% + 1% for insurance
Tier 3 5% + 1% forinsurance

Pension Contributions

The Beard of Trustees of KPPA determines the System's required pension contribution rate
annua'ly for non-hazardous covered employees, 21,77% for the year ended June 30, 2022

The payroll for non-hazardous employees covered by CERS for the year ended June 30, 2022
was 51 608,745 the System's total payroll was $1,784 914 The contribution requirement for the
year ended June 30, 2022, was 3421 270, which consisted of $340 783 fram the System ang
3840 487 from employees.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

At Jure 30 2022, the System reporied a iability for its proportionate share of the net pension
abilty for CERS. The amount recognized Ty the System as its proportionate share of the nat
pension lability was $3.518,030. The total pension liability. net pensicn hability, and sensiiviy
information was measured as June 30, 2021, and was based on an actuaral valuation gate of
June 30, 2019, The total pension hiab:lty was rolled forward from the valuation date (June 30,
201%) to the Plan’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, using generally accepled actuarial principles.
At June 30, 2021, the Systam's proportion was .055178% for non-hazardous,
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LEITCHFIELD UTILITIES SYSTEM
{A COMPONENT UNIT OF CITY OF LEITCHFIELD, KENTUCKY)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
JUNE 30, 2022

8 RETIREMENT PLAN - CONTINUED

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Qutflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions - Concluded

For the year ended June 30, 2022, the System recognized pension expense of $624,791. I
addition, the System reporied deferrad outflows of resources and deferred nflows of resources
related to pensions, as listed in the following table.

Kor-Hazardous
Deferrad Dafersed
Qutflows Inflows
flerence Detween sxpacted and aclua
EXpErEnoe 41 398 24145
Changes of assumptans 47,218
Neat differsnce pewesn projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investiments 136,476 05 371
Changas in preporion and differences between
employer contribubions and proporbanate share
of contributions 205430
Employer contributions subsequent to the
rrgasurement date 340.783 —
Total 119,303 639,516

The $340,783 repened as deterred outfiows of resources relaled to pensions resuiting from the
System's contributions subsegquent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of
the net pension liabiity in the year ending June 30, 2023. Other amounts reponted as deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows related 1o pensions will be recognized in pension
expaense 3s follows

Year ending June 30
2023 76,322
2024 { 38,881
2025 {100,803)
2026 {145,834)

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions for Determining the Total Pension Liability and Net
Pension Liability

The fotal pension liability, net pension liability and sensitivity information as of June 30, 2021, were
based on an actuanal valuation date of June 30, 2018 The iotal pension habilty was rolled
forward from the valuation date (June 30, 2018} to the Plan's fiscal year ending June 3¢, 2021,
using generally accepted actuarial principles.
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LEITCHFIELD UTILITIES SYSTEM
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF CITY OF LEITCHFIELD, KENTUCKY)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
JUNE 30, 2022

8. RETIREMENT PLAN - CONTINUED

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions for Determining the Total Pension Liability and Net
Pension Liability - Concluded

The total pension hability as of June 30 2031, was determined using these assumptions:

Inflation 2.30%

Payroll Growth Rate 2.00%

Salary Increases 3.30% to 10.30%, vanes by sewvice for non-hazardous
3.55% 1o 19.05%, varies by service for CERS hazardous

investment Rate of Return £.25%

The mortaility table used for active members was a Pub-2010 General Mortality table, for the Non-
Hazardous System. and the Pub-2010 Public Safety Mortality table for the Hazardous Sysiem,
projected with the ulimate rates from the MP-2014 mortality improvement scale using a basa year
of 2010. The mortality table used for healthy refired members was a system-specific moralty
tabie based on morality experience from 2013-2018, projected with the ultimate rates from MP-
2014 monality improvement scale using base year of 2018 The moralty fable used for the
disabled members was PUB-2010 Disabled Morality fable, with a 4-year set-forward for both male
and female rates projected with the ultimate rates from the MP-2014 mortality improvement scale
usmng a base year of 2010,

The long-term expacted rates of return were determined by using a building block method in which
cest estimated ranges of expected future real rates of return were developed for each asset class
The ranges wara combined by weighting the expected future real rate of return by the target asset
allocation percentage The target allocation and best estimates of arthmetic real rate of retum for
each major asset class are summarized in the following table,

Fargot Long-Term Expucted
Asset Class Aliozation Real Rate of Return
Growth 68.50%
US Equity 21.75% 570%
Non-US Equity 21.75% 6.35%
Frivate Equity 10.00% 9.70%
Specialty Credit/High Yield 15.00% 2.80%
Liquidity 11.50%
Core Bonds 10.00% {0.00%:)
Cash 1.50% (G.80%)
Diversifying Strategies 20.00%
Real Estate 10.00% 5.40%
Real Retum L I000% 4.55%
Expected Real Return 100.00% 3.96%
Long Term Inflation Assumption 2.30%
Expected Nominal Return for Portiolio 6.25%
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LEITCHFIELD UTILITIES SYSTEM
{A COMPONENT UNIT OF CITY OF LEITCHFIELD, KENTUCKY}
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
JUNE 30, 2022

8. RETIREMENT PLAN - CONCLUDED

Discount Rate - Pension

The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate of 6 25% for CERS Non-
hazardous assumed that the funds receive the required employer contributions each future year
as determined by the current funding policy established in statute as iast amended by House Bl
A62 (passed in 2018). The giscount rate detarmination does not use a municipal bond raie.

Sensitivity of the Utilities System’s Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability to Changes
in the Discount Rate

The folowing table presents the net pension liabilty of the Utitles Systam, calculated using the
discount rates selected by CERS as well as what the Utilities System's net pension lability would
be if & were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point fower or 1-perceniage-
ooint ligher thas the current rate:

System's
Discount Proportionate Share of
Rate Net Pension Liability
Non-hazardous
1% Dacraasse 5.25% 4,512,041
Current Discount Rate 8.25% 3,518,030
1% Increase 7.28% 2,598 510
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine the Actuarially Determined
Contribution
The following were the actuarial methods and assumptions used to determine the actuaral
contributions.
Waluation Dats Junae 30, 2018
Exparmnce Study July 1, 2613 - June 30, 2018
Actanal Cost Method Entry Age Normal
Amextization Method Level percantage of payrall
Remaning Amonization Peariod 25 years, vosed
Sseet Valuation Mathad 20% of the difference between the market value
of assels and the expacted acluanal vaiue of
assels is recognized
Payroil Growth Rate 2.00%
inflaton 2.30%
Salary Incroase 3.30% to 11 55%, varies by service
investment Rate of Retum B.25%

The mortality table used for active members is RP-2000 Combined Mortality Table projectad with
Scale BB to 2013 (multiplied by 50% for males and 30% for females) For heaithy retirad
members and bereficiaries, (ke mortality table used ‘s the RP-2000 Combined Monaity Table
projected with Scale BB o 2013 (set back for one year for females), For disabled members, the
RP-2000 Combined Disabied Mortality Table projected with Scale BB to 2013 (set back four years
for malas} is used for the period after disability retiremeant

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information apout the persion plan's fiduciary net position is available in the separataly
wsued financial reports of CERS, included in Kentucky Public Pension Authortys Comprehensive
Arnnual Financial Rapert found on the XPFA website at weav kyretky.gov. The effect of CERS on
the Syslem's net position has been determined on the same basis used by CERS.
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LEITCHFIELD UTILITIES SYSTEM
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF CITY OF LEITCHFIELD, KENTUCKY}
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
JUNE 30, 2022

9. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT (OPEB) PLAN

Medical Insurance Plan Description and Benefits

In addition to the pension benefits described atove, Kentucky Rewseg Statuts 61 702 requires
CERS o provide post-retirement health care benefits to eligible members and deperdents
Changes to the medical plan may be made by the Kentucky Puliic Pension Authortys’ Board of
Trustees and the General Assembly. The ehgitle non-Medicare retirees are coversd by the
Cepartment of Emplioyes Insurance (DEI plans. KPPA submits the premium payments o OFI
The Board contracts with Humana to provide health care benefits to the eligib'e Medicare ralirees
through a Medicare Advamtapge Plan  The Ipsurance Fund pays a prescribed contnbution for
whaole or partial payment of required premiums to purchase hospital and medical insurance.

The amounis of contribution paid by the Insurance Fund 5 based on years of service For
membars participating prior to July 1, 2003, years of service and respective parcentages of the
maximum contribution are as follows:

Years of Service Paid by Insurance Fund (%]
20+ years 100.00%
15 - 19 years 75.00%
15 - 14 years 50.00%
4 - 8 years 25.00%
Less than 4 vears £.00%

As a resut of House Bill 230 {2004 Kentucky General Assembly), medical insurance oenefils are
calculateg cifferently for members who began participating on, or after, July 1, 2003  Cnce
members reach a minimuem vesting perog of 10 years, non-hazardous employees whose
participation began on, or after July 1, 2003, earn $10 per month for insurance tenefitz at
retirement for every year of eamed service without regard 1o a maximum dollar amount. This
dollar amount is subect 1o adjustment annually, which is currently 1.5%, based upon Kenfucky
Revised Statutes.

The Kentucky Public Pension Authority (KPPA} issues a publicly available financial report that
includes financial statements and required supplementary information for CERS. The report is
availatle at www kyret ky gov or by writing to Kentucky Public Pensicn Authoritys, Premier Parx
West, 1260 Louisville Road, Frankfort. Kentucky 40801, CERS prepares its financial statements
ir accordance with GASH stataments and generally accepted accounting prnciples. The acorual
pasis of accounting is used for all funds. Centributions are recognized when due, pursuant to
statutory requirements. Benefits are recognized in the month they are earned and withdrawals
are recognized in the maonth they are due and payable. Investments are recogrized at fair value.

QOPEB Contributions

The Board of Trustees of KPPA determines the System’s reguired OPEB contribution rate
annually, for non-hazardous covered payroll, 5.78% for the year ended June 30 2022, The
cantrbution requirement for the year ended June 30, 2022, was $108,140, which consisted pf
$83.043 from the System and $16.097 from empleyees.
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LEITCHFIELD UTILITIES SYSTEM
{A COMPONENT UNIT OF CITY OF LEITCHFIELD, KENTUCKY)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
JUNE 30, 2022

9. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT {OPEB) PLAN - CONTINUED

OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB

At June 30, 2022, the System reported a habity for ifs proportionate share of the net OPEB
liaghility for CERS. The amount recagnized by the System as its proportionate share of the net
OPEE liabilty was $1,056 108. The total OPEB liability, net CPEB lability, ana sensitivty
information for the Plan was measured as of June 30, 2027, and was based on an acluarnal
vaiuation date of June 30, 2019. The total OPEB Labiity was rolled forwara from the valuaton
date {June 30, 2018} {o the Plan's fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, using genrerally accepted
actuarial principals Al June 30, 2021, the System’s proportion was .055185% for non-hazardous.

Far the year ended June 30, 2022, the System recognized OPEB expense of $47.303 At June
30, 2022, the System reported defered cutflows of rescurces and deferred inflows of resources
related 1o OPEB from the following scurces:

Non-Hazardous

Deferred Deferred
Cutflows inflows
Difference between sxpected and achal
QXpensanos 166,073 315,318
Cranges of assurmplions 279,904 982

Net gifference between drojected and
actug garnings on plan investments §3.210 218,423

Changes in prepotion and dfferences
between empioyer contributions and

propationate share of contibutions 88,5286 5%
Emgloyer contnbutons subseqguent to

the measuremant gate 893,043 s
Total 678,845 835,244

The 393,043 {Non-Hazardous) reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPFB
resulting from System contributions subsequent 1o the measurement date will be recagrized as a
reduction of the net OPEB liabilty in the year ending June 30, 2023 Other amounts reportted as
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows related to OPEB will be recognized in OFEB
expense as follows:

Year ending June 30
2023 53,345
2024 28,182
2025 20,949
2026 {51,829
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LEITCHFIELD UTILITIES SYSTEM
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF CITY OF LEITCHFIELD, KENTUCKY)}
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

JUNE 30, 2022

8. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT {OPEB) PLAN - CONTINUED

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions for Determining the Total OPEB Liability and Net

OPEB Liability

The total OPEB liabifity, net OPEB lability and sensitivity information as of June 30, 2021 were
based on an actuarial valuation date of June 30, 2018, The tofa! OPEB liability was rolied forwand
from the valuation date {June 30, 2018} lo the Plar's fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, using

generally accepted aciuanal principles.

The total OPEB liability as of June 30, 2021, was determined using these assumplons.

inflation
Payroll Growth Rate
Satary Increases

investmen! Eate of Return
Healtrcare Trend Ratas
Pre - 85

Post - 85

Maralty

Pre-ratrement

Fost-retrement {non-dieabled)

Pas-retirameant (dissbiag)

TPEC

2.30%

2.00%

3.30% to 10.30%. vares by semvice for non-hazardous
3.55% 1o 18 05%:, vanes by sewice for CERS hazardous
B.25%

inbal trend starting at §40% ot Janwary 1, 2023, and
gradually decreasing o an ullimate trend rate of 4 06% over
a poriod of 13 years

Iniial trend starting &t 2.80% at January 1, 2023, ang
graduzlly decreasing to an ultimate trend rate 4.05% cver a
perod of 13 years

PUB-2010 General Morality tavle, for the Non-Hazardous
Systems, and the PUB-2010 Public Safety Mortality talie foe
the Hazardous Systems, projected with the ulimate rates
frorn the MP-2014 mortality improvernent scale using a oase
year of 2010

System-specihic monaily lable based on mortaily experience
from 2013-2018, projecied with the ultimate rates from MP-
2014 mortality improverment scale using a base vear of 2018
PUB-2010 Disabled Mortality tahie, with a <year sel-forward
for both male and fernaie rates, projected with the ultimate
rates from the MP-2014 mortality improvement scale usng &
base yaar of 2010
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LEITCHFIELD UTILITIES SYSTEM
{A COMPONENT UNIT OF CITY OF LEITCHFIELD, KENTUCKY}
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
JUNE 30, 2022

8. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT {(OPEB) PLAN - CONTINUED

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions for Determining the Total OPEE Liability and Net
OPEB Liability - Concluded

The long-term expected rates of retum were determined by using a building block methed in whick
best estimated renges of expected future real rates of return were developed for each asse! class,
The rangas were combined by weighting the expected future real rate of returm by the target asset
allocation percentage. The target aliocation and best estimates of anthmetic real rate of returrn for
each maor assel ¢lass are summanzed in the {able pelow

Long-Term
Target Expected
Asset Class Allocation Real Rate of Rotum

Growth 68.50%

US Equity 2% 75% 5.70%

Nor-US Equity 21.75% 6.35%

Private Equity 10.00% 8 70%

Specialty CreditHigh Yield 15.00% 2.80%
Liquidity 11.50%

Core Bonds 10.00% i0.00%)

Cash 1.50% (G.80%)
Diversifying Strategies 20.00%

Heal Estate 10.00% 5.40%

Rea’ Retumn 10.00% 4.55%
Expected Real Return 100.00% 3.95%
Long Term Inflaticn Assumption 2.30%
Expectad Nominal Return for Portfolio 6,25%

Discount Rate - OPEB

Singie discount rates of 5.34% for CERS Non-hazardous, and 530% for CERS Hazardous were
used o measure the tota! OPEB bability as of June 30, 2021. The single discourt rates are based
on the expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments of §.25%, and a municipal bond rate of
2.45%, as repored in Fidelly index’s "20-Year Municipal GO AA index” as of June 30 2021%
Based on the stated assumptions and the projection of cash flows as of each fiscal year ending,
the Pian's fiduciary net position and future contributions were projected to be sutficient to finance
the future benefit payments of the current plan members. Therefore, the iong-term expaciad rate
of return on insurance plan investments was appliec to all penods of the projected benefit
payments paid from the retirement system. rHowever, the cost associated with the implicit
employer subsidy was not included in the caloulation of the KPPA's aciuarial cetermined
contributions. and any cost associated with the implict subsidy will not e paid out of the KPPA's
trusts. Therefore, the municipal bond rate was applied to future expected benclit payments
associated with the imphlicit subsidy.
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LEITCHFIELD UTILITIES SYSTEW
{A COMPONENT UNIT OF CITY OF LEITCHFIELD, KENTUCKY)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
JUNE 30, 2022

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT (OPEB) PLAN - CONTINUED

Sensitivity of the System's Proportionate Share of Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the
Discount Rate and Healthcare Cost Trend Rate

T'he following tables present the net OPEBR liability of the System. calculated using the discount
and healthcare cost trend rates selected by CERS, as well as what the System's net OPEB liability
would be if it were calculated using 8 discoun! rate or healthcare cost trend rate that is 1-
percantaga-paint lower or -percentage-point highar than the current rate

Table 1 - Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

System’s

Discount Propartionate Share of

Rate Net OPEB Liability
Non-Hazardous
1% Decrease 4.20% 1,450,026
Current Discourtt Rate 5.20% 1,056 106
1% Increase 6.20% 732,830
Table 2 - Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rate

System’s

Healthcare Proportionate Share of

Cost Trend Rate Net OPER {iability

Non-Hazardous

1% Decreass 4.20% 760.271
Current Healthcare

Cost Trend Rata 520% 1,058,106
1% Increasea 6.20% 1,413,184

Actuarial Methods And Assumptions Used To Determine The Actuarially Determined
Contribution

The following tables were the actuarial methods and assumptions used to determine the actuarial
contrbutions:

P&C

Waluation Date

Exgesrience Sty

Actuanial Cost Mathod
Amorization Method
Ramaining Amortization Period

Fanet Valualon Meshod

Payrolt Growth Rade
inBatian

Salary Incresse
rwasirnent Rate of Return
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June 30, 2019

July 1, 2013 - June 30, 2018

£ntry Age Narml

Lavel percentage of pay

a0 years, closed porod M Jues 30, 2B

Gainsfosses  ncurring  afer 20189 will be

amartized  over  separale  closed  20.ear

amorization: basis

20% of the difference betwesn ihe market value
of assads and the expected achuasal value of
assets is recognized

2 %
2.30%
3 30% 40 1HNE% vanes by sorvice
6 25%



LEITCHFIELD UTILITIES SYSTEM
{A COMPONENT UNIT OF CITY OF LEITCHFIELD, KENTUCKY}
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONCLUDED
JUNE 30, 2022

8. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT (OPEB) PLAN - CONCLUDED

Actuarial Methods And Assumptions Used To Determine The Actuarially Determined
Contribution - Concluded
Healthcare Cost Trend Rates
Preds irdtinl trands slading at £28% 8t Jsnuary 1.
2021, and gradually decraasing lo an uilimats

trand rate of 4.08% over a perod of 13 years,

The 2020 premiums were known @ he time of
the valuation and ware incorpormted inlo the
fHabdity measutoment

Fost. 65 Initial trend starting at 580% at Jaowary 1,
J021. and gracuslly gacreasing 1o an ulumats
wand rate of 4.05% over 3 penad of 14 years.
The 2020 pramiurms were knowe st the lime of
the vatuation ang wee nmogporated info the
liability measurerren

Prage-in-Fravigion Board certfied rate is phased into the
aciuarally rate in accordance wih HHIEE
enacied in 2018 for CERE ron-hazardous and
hazanious

The montality table used for active members is RP-2000 Combined Mortality Tabie projected with
Scale BB to 2013 (multiplied by 50% for males and 30% for females) For healthy retired
members and berefciaries, the monality table used s the RP-2000 Cambined Mortality Table
projected with Scale BB to 2013 iset back for one year for females). For disabled members, the
RP.2000 Combined Disabled Mortalty Table projected with Scale BB fo 2013 (setf back four years
for males} is used for the perod after disability retirement.

OPEB Plan Fiduclary Net Position

Detailed information about the OPEB plan's fiduciary net position is available in the separately
issued financial reports of CERS, included in Kentucky Public Pension Authoritys Comprahensive
Arnual Financial Report. The effect of CERS on the System's net position has been determined
on the same basis used by CERS

10. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The System receives federal and state grants for speoitic purposes that are subject to review and
audit by oversight agencies. Such augiis coulg result in 3 request for rembursement for
expenditures dgisaliowed under the terms and conditions of the appropriate agency. In the apinion
of system management, such disallowances, if any, will not be significant,

in December 2018, a navel strain of Coronavirus was reported o have surfaced in China and has
spread throughout the world, The virus has caused business disruption. There is considerable
uncertainty as o the duration of the wrus. Any related financia! impact cannot be reasonably
estimated.
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LEITCHFIELD UTILITIES SYSTEM
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF CITY OF LEITCHFIELD, KENTUCKY])
GASB 68 REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
JUNE 30, 2022

SCHEDULE OF THE SYSTEM'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF
THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
County Employees’ Retiremant System

2015 2016 017 2018 2019
Systemy's propaortion of the net pension
lability 050004% 048336% D4B4AG% 048107% 048485%
System's proportionate share of the net
pension liability 1.625,238 2,078,218 2,387,542 2,698,784 2,853,493
Syslem's covered payroll 1,149 232 1,127,748 1,196,533 1,148,603 1,336,097

System's proportionate share of the net
pension liability as a percentage of ils
coverad payroll 141.42% 184.28% 199.54% 234.96% 220.56%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage
of the tolal pension liability 66.80% 59.97% 55 50% 83.33% 53.55%

TP&C Page 37



202 2021 2022

System's proportion of the net pension

liabiliby G50087% 062422% 055178%
System's proportionate share of the net

pension liability 3,523,344 4020724 3,518,030
System's cavered payroll 1,446,854 1,324,798 1,583,084

System’s proportionate share of the nel
pension lability as a parcentage of its

covered payroll 243.52% 303.50% 222.23%
Plan fiduciary net pasition as a percentage
of the total pension liabdity 50, 45% 47.81% 57.33%

{The amounts presented were determined as of the previous fiscal year end date.}
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Cortractually required conirbution
Contributions in relation to the

cantractually required contribution
Contribution deficiency

System's cavered payrol!

Contributicn as a percentage of
covered payroll

SCHEOULE OF THE SYSTEM'S CONTRIBUTIONS
County Employeos' Retirement System

2015 2016 2017
198,273 204,129 214,550

1198,273) (204,128} {214.559)

1,127,748 1,196,533 1,148 603
17.67% 17 06% 18.68%

Page 39

2018
193,801

(193,901}

-

1,339,087

14.48%

2019
234 680

(234 680)

=

1,446 854

16.22%



2020 2021 2022

S i,

Caontractually required contribution 287 990 305,535 340,783
Caniributions in relation (o the

cortraciually required contribution {287 990) {305 535) {340,783}
Contribution deficiency B/ — RO Jp—— A
System's covered payroil 1,342,796 1,583,084 1.6083,74%
Contricution as a percentage of

covered payrol 18.30% 18.30% 21.17%

{The amounts presented were determined as of the current fiscal year ond date.)

Scheduies are intended to shaw information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available,

Notes to Required Supplementary Information:

Changes of benefit terms. None
Changes of assumptions: Nooag
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LEITCHFIELD UTILITIES SYSTEM
{A COMPONENT UNIT OF CITY OF LEITCHFIELD, KENTUCKY)
GASB 75 REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
JUNE 30, 2022

SCHEDULE OF THE SYSTEM'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF
THE NET OPEB LIABILITY
County Employess' Retirement Syatem

2018 2019 2020 2021

Systam's proportion of the net OPER

Jiability D46107% L4BA85% 050106% L82407%
System's proportionate share of the net

OPES liability 826,208 BED, Q04 842 760 1,285,470
Systemn's oovered payrol! 1,148,803 1,338,087 1.445 854 1,324,796
System's proportionats share of the net

OPER liahility as a percantage of its

covered payroll 8G.70% 654.29% 58.25% 85.52%
Plan fiduciary net position as a parcentage

of the total OPEB Fability 52.40% 57.63% G0.44% 51.67%
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L0551658%
1,056,106
1.583.084

BE.71%

62.91%



Contractually required contribution
Contributions in ralation to the

contractually required contripution
Contributien deficiency

System's covered payroll

Contribution as g percentage of
covered payroll

Schedules are intended to show information far 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available.

SCHEDULE OF THE SYSTEM'S CONTRIBUTIONS
Caunty Employees’ Retirement System

2018 2019 2020
62,938 76,105 74,027
(82,938} {76,105} (71027}
1,338,087 1,446,854 1,342,756
4.70% 5.26% 4.76%

Notes to Required Supplementary Information:

Changes of benefif terms. Nonea
Changes of assumptions: Nong

TP&C

See indesendant auditor's report
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2021
75,355

{15,355)

-

1,583,084

4.76%

2022
23,043

(83,042

-

1,608,745

5.78%



SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE - PROPRIETARY FUND
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LEITCHFIELD UTILITIES SYSTEM
{A COMPONENT UNIT OF CITY OF LEITCHFIELD, KENTUCKY)
SCHEDULE OF EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

SYSTEM OPERATIONS

Chemicals

Gas Purchases

Supples

Monitoring and Lab Services
Perscnnel - Maintenance Labor
Repairs and Maintenance
Wiities

Total System Operations

GEMNERAL UPERATING

Fuel

Rents
Miscellareous
Postage and Freight
Publication Exganse
Repairs and Mantenance
Supplies

Small Equipment
Travel and Training
Uniforms

Vehicle Expenses

Total General Operating

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE

insurance - Property and Liabrlity
Legal and Accounting
Miscellansous
Office Supples and Equipment
Persannal
Commission Salaries
Health (nsurance/Meadical
Office Salaries
Taxes, Retrement, Other
Workers' Compensation and Other
Fenis
Telephone

Total General and Administrative

TP&C

Enterprise Fund

Water Sewer Gas Total
217,088 52,157 . 269,245
- - 1,781,688 1,781 688
35682 38,563 43,718 116,963
12,880 9,580 15,000 37 469
871,137 439,226 220,727 1,231,080
105,406 30023 47,342 182,771
265,305 288830 4357 558 486
1,207,498 856,388 2,112,826 4,176,712
27 421 31,916 15,435 74,772
- 834 . 834
3,024 1,773 14,521 24 318
8431 7440 7307 23 187
1,230 "7 14811 8,258
45,727 38,196 15.789 99,712
9,041 11,963 3,569 24803
4,577 §,440 3,53¢ 17,556
12.866 g,794 21,483 44173
6,007 6,736 2,989 15.732
12,889 19,164 7,234 38,287
131,223 137,402 104,807 373432
34 029 34,029 17,015 85073
17,703 16,230 16,408 53,342
3,724 4271 2,643 10,638
26,738 21,446 22 64¢ 70833
9,859 9,859 9,283 29,001
110,072 110,072 110,393 330,537
103,578 103.203 102.486 308,267
340,873 271,705 162,041 794 618
10,731 10,731 5875 27,340
8414 18,228 18.2687 54,525
__10.586 12,001 L4762 27328
_ 686,287 614775 491846 1,792,908
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LEITCHFIELD UTILITIES SYSTEM
{A COMPONENT UNIT OF CITY OF LEITCHFIELD, KENTUCKY}
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Federal Pass-through

Assistance Entity Total
Fedaral Grantor/Pass-through Grantor/ Listing ldentifying Federal
Program or Cluster Title _, . Number Number Expenditures
U.S. Department of Agriculture
Rural Development
Passed through City of Leitchfield, Kentucky
Water and Waste Program Cluster
Water andg Waste Disposal Systems for
Rurai Communities
GrantiLoan 10.780 Nia 2,683 314
TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 2.683,314

See accompanying notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards
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LEITCHFIELD UTILITIES SYSTEM
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF CITY OF LEITCHFIELD, KENTUCKY]}
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accempanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the feders| aware actty
of the Leitchfield Utilities Systerm under programs of the federal government for the year enced
Juneg 30, 2022, The information in this schedule is presented i accordance with the requirements
of Title 2 US. Code of Federal Regulations {CFR), Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards {Uniform Ouidance). Because the Schadule
presents only a selected portion of the operations of Leitchfield Utiies System. it s not intended
to and does nol present the financial position, changes in net position, or cash fiows of the
System

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reperted on the accrual basis of accounting, Such

expenditures are recognized folowing the cost principies contained in the Unform Guidance,
wherein centain typas of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as o reimbursement.

SUB-RECIPIENTS

The Utiltes System was the sub-recipient ¢f grants awarded to the City of Leitchfield, Kertucky
{primary govermnment},

INDIRECT COST RATE

Leitchfield Utilities System has electaed to use 1ha 10% de minimis indiract cost rate as allowed
under Uniform Guidance.

LOAN AND LOAN GUARANTEE FROGRAMS

Water and Waste Disposal Systems for Rural Communities

Rura! Developmen: Seres A 5,564,000
Bond Payment Seres A {67 000)
Rural Development Series A 5,467,000
Rural Developmen! Series B 4,538.000
Band Payment Series B {___78.000;
Rural Develcpment Senes 8 4,460,000
Ending Balance June 30, 2022 9,927,000
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Commission
Leitchfield Utilities System
Leitchfield, Kentucky

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted n the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the Uniteg States, the financial statements of the business-type
activities and major fund of Letchfield Utiities Systern, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022,
and the related notes o the financial statements, which collectively comprise Ledchfield Utilities
Systerm’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated February B, 2023

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

in planning anc performing our audit of the financal statements. we considered Leitchfield Utilites
System's internal control over financial reporting {intemal control) o determine the audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion an the effectiveness of Leitehficld Utilives
System's internal contrel. Accordingly, we da rot express an opinion on the effectiveness of Leitchiisld
Utilities System’s internal control,

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control goes not allow
management or employees, in the rormal course of performing their assigred funclions. 1o prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatermenis on a timely basis, A material weakness is a deficiency, o a
combination of deficiencias, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, ar a combination of deficiancies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet! important enough to merit attention by those charged

with governance

Our consideration of internal contrel was for the limited purpese described in the first paragraph of this
sechion and was not designed to identify all ceficiencies in internal control that mignt be material
weaknesses, ar significant deficiencies Given these limitations, during our audit we dig not identify
any deficiencies in internal conirg! that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identfied.
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To the Commission
Leitchfield Utiltias System

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Leichfeld Utities System's financial
statements are free from matenal misstatement we performed tests of its compliance with carain
provisions of laws, regulations, coentracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have
a direct ard material efect on the datermination of financial statement amounts. However, providing
an opinion an somphance with those provisions was not an cbjective of cur audt, and accordingly. we
do not express such an opinion. The results of cur tests disclosed no nstarces of noncampliance or
ather matters that are reguired to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
somphance and the results of that testing, and not te provide an cpinicn on the effectveness of the
entity's internal cortrol or en comgliance, This report is an integral part of an audi performed in
accordance wiln Government Auditing Standards in considering the ertity's internal contral ana
compliance. Accordingly, this communcation is not suitable for any other purpose.

Certified Public Accountants
Glasgow. Kentucky
February 8, 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED
BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Commission
Ledchield Utlities System
Leitehfield, Kentucky

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We have sudited Laitchfield Uilities System's compliance with the types of compliance requirements
identifiad as subject to aud?t in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct ard material
effect on each of Leitchfield Utilities System’'s major federal programs for the year ended June 30,
2022, Letchfeld Utilites System’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of audiloer's
results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questicned costs

in our opinicn, Leitchfield Utiities System complied, in all material respects with the types of
compliance requrements referred to anove that could have a direct and material effect on each of its
major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2022

Basis for Opinions on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepteg in the
United Siates of America; the standards applicable to financial audits confained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Compiroller General of the Uniteg Siates; and the audii requirements
of Title 2 US. Code of Federal Rogulations Part 200 Uniform Administrative Requirements, Costs
Principlas, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Gudance). Our responsinlities under
those standards anc the Unifarm Guidance are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for

tne Audit of Compiliance section of aur report.

We are required to be independent of Leitchfield Utiities System and o meel our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We beleve that
the audt evidence we have oblained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on
compliance for each major federal program. Qur audit does not provide a ‘ega! determinatior of
Leitchfield Utlities System's compliance with the compliarce requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management far Compliance

Management is responsible for campliance with the requirements referred to above and for the gesign,
impiementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of
laws, statues, regulations, rules, and provisions of confracts or grant agreements applcable to

Leitchfield Ltilities System’s federal programs.
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To the Commission
Leltchiield Utilites System

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance abou! whether material noncompliance with the
campliance requirements referrec 1o above accurred. whether due to fraud or error, and express an
cpirvon on Leitchfield Uilities System's compliance based on our audit. Reasonavle assurance is a2
hign leve! of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantae that an audd
conductes in accordance with generally acceptad avditing standards, Governmaent Auditing Standards,
andg the Unitorm Guidance will always detect material noncompliance when it exils. The risk of not
detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting fram earor, as
fraud may involye collusion, forgery, intentonal omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control, Nancompliance with the compliance reguirements referred 1o above 15 consdered
material i there s a substantal ikelihood that, ingividually or in the aggregate. it woulg influance the
judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about Ledchfield Utities System's
complance with the requiremen:s of each major federal orogram as a whole

In performing an audit in accordance with gererally accepted augiting standards, Government Auditing
Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we:

« Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit,

« ldentify and assess the risks of matenal noncompliance, whether due to fraud or emor, ard
design and perform audit grocedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding Letchfield Utiites System's compliance with
the compliance requirements reterred fo above and perfarming such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances,

» Obtain an understanding of Leitchfield Utilitles System's internal control over compliance
relevant to the audt in order to design asudt procedures that are appreprate in the
circumstances and to fest and report on internal control over cempliance it accordance with
the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing anr opinion on the effectivencss
of Leitchfield Utilites System's internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion
is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other malters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit ang any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in
internal control over compliance that we identified curing the audd.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exisls when the design or operaticn of a control over
compliance does not alfow management or employees, in the nonmal course of performing their
assigned functicrns, to prevent, or detect and comect, noncompliance with a type of complance
raquirement of & federal program on a tmely casis. A material weakness in internal control aver
compliance ¢ a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internai control over compliance such
that there is a reasonable possiblity that materal noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a feceral program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely bas's A
significant deficiency in internal controf over compliance i 3 <deficengy. or a combinalion of
deficiencies, in infernal control over compliance with a type of compliance requiremant of a faderal
program that is less severe than a malerial waakness in internal contra’ over compliarce, yet important
enough to ment attention by those charged with govemnance.
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To the Commission
Leitchfiela Utilives System

Report on Internal Control over Compliance - Concluded

Our consideration of internal contro! over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
Auditor's Responsitilities for the Augit on Compliance section above and was not designed to identify
all deficencies in internat cantrol over compliance that might be material weakresses or signifcant
deficiencies in internal contro! over compiiance Given these limitations, during our augit we did rot
identify any deficiencies in internal conirol over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or signficant deficiencies in nternal
contro! over complance may exist that have not been identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectivenass of intemal
cortrol over compliance. Accardingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is sclely t¢ descrive the scope of our
testing of internal control aver campliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
the Unform Guidance. Accardingly, this repart is not suitable for any other purpase.

o, Bloonnt ooy PC

Cemfied Public Accountants
Glasgow, Kentucky
February 8, 2023
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LEITCHFIELD UTILITIES SYSTEM
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF LEITCHFIELD, KENTUCKY)
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS

1

w

L2

TP&C

Tne auditor's report expresses an unmodified opimon on whather the financial
statements of Leitchfield Utilities System were prepared in accordance with GAAP,

No significant deticiencies or material weaknesses relaling to the audit of the firancial
slatements are reported in the Report on internal Control Qver Financial Reporting and
on Compliance and Cther Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Staternents Performaed

in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

No instances of noncompliarce matenal to the tinancial statements of Ledchiield
Utilites System, which would be required to be reporied in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards, were disclosed durng the audit

No significant deficiencies or matenal weaknesses relating to the audit of the major
federal award programs are reponrted in the Independent Auditor's Report on
Compliance for Each Major Program and on Internal Contrel Over Compliance Required
by the Uniform Guidance

The auditer's report on compliance for major federal award programs for Leitchfield
Utilities System expresses an unmodified opinion on all major federal programs.

Tnere were no audt findings that are required to be reperied in accordance with 2 CFR
Saction 200.516(a}.

The pragram tested as a major program was:

CFOA
SRR ... ... ... Number
Water and Waste Program Cluster
Water and Waste Dispasal Systems for Rural Communities 10760

The threshoid used for distinguishing betwsan Type A and B programs was 3750,000

Leitchfield Utilites System did not qualify as a low-risk auditee.
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APPENDIX 3

Supplemental Information — Table 1



Table No. 1

Water System Operation & Maintenance Expenses
Leitchfield Utilities Commission
(Year Ending June 30, 2022)

Audit
Account Name Joint Use __ City Only Total Total
Labor
Labor - Water $211,110 $211,110
Labor - Water Plant $360,026 $360,026
SUBTOTALS $360,026 $211,110 $571,136
Power & Pumping
Water Plant Electric $155,604 $2,328 $157,932
Raw Water Intake Electric $99,742 30 $99,742
Water Tower Electric $2,048 $0 $2,048
Water Plant House Electric $1,704 $0 $1,704
Electric for Booster $0 $0 $0
SUBTOTALS $259,098 $2,328 $261,426
Purification Supplies
Water Plant Chemicals $217,088 $0 $217,088
Water Plant Lab Supplies $27,492 $0 $27,492
Water Plant Monitoring/Lab Svcs $12,880 $0 $12,880
SUBTOTALS $257,460 $0 $257,460
Supplies/Repairs/Services
Water Tower Expense & Maint $2,924 $0 $2,924
Line & Meter R&M $438 $102,044 $102,482
Materials for Water Installation $0 $8,190 $8,190
Utilities/Security Expense $2,899 $979 $3,878
SUBTOTALS $6,261 $111,213 $117,474
TOTALS $882,845 $324,651 $1,207,498 $1,207,498

(pg. 44)



APPENDIX 4

Bond Debt Service Schedules — Revenue Bonds, Series 2014, Series 2012A and
2012B, and Series 2019A and 2019B
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(Finance 7.003 City of Leitchfield, KY:LEITCH-2012A_RD) Page 1

May 28, 2013 4:58 pm Prepared by Cuw Finance

BOND DEBT SERVICE W TP-Q1-00 Secie s 124 ot

City of Leitchfield, KY
Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 2012A
“hM 00

K.
000.000,
Period B0 A R0 S0LESLE0. Annual
Ending Principal Coupon Interest Debt Service Debt Service
05/01/2012 14,373.33 14,373.33
06/30/2012 14,373.33
11/01/2012 19,600.00 19,600.00
05/01/2013 19,600.00 19,600.00
06/30/2013 39,200.00
11/01/2013 19,600.00 19,600.00
05/01/2014 ¥'19,600.00 +/19,600.00
06/30/2014 39,200.00
11/01/2014 29,000 2.000% 19,600.00 48,600.00
05/01/2015 19,310.00 19,310.00
2 0 06/30/2015 L 167,910.00
000 - 0is 200067 Z505% 1635007 #310.00”
05/01/2016 19,010.00v 19,010.00
06/30/2016 / 68,320.00
1170172016 31,000V 2.000% 19,010.00v" ™~ 50,010.00"
05/01/2017 18,700.00 v 18,700.00 v/
06/30/2017 4 6871000
o &ZQ"D‘QQ T1/01/2017 31,500V T 2.000% 18,700.00 1 50,200.00 ¥
05/01/2018 18,385.00 v 18,385.00 v
06/30/2018 o 68,585.00
"11/01/2018 32,500 / 2.000% 18,385.00 v so,ass.oo/
05/01/2019 18,060.00 Y 18,060.00
06/30/2019 » _ - 68,945,00
11/01/2019 33,500 ¥ 2.000% 1806000V 51,560.00
05/01/2020 17,725.00 ¥ 17,725.00
06/30/2020 69,285.00
1170172020 34,500 | 2.000% 17,725,064 '5'2','225.00] T T
0570172021 17,380.00 v 17,380.00 ¥
7320&9 06/30/2021 69,605.00
1170172021 IS E00N T 2.060% 17380069 53,880.50¢ - .
05/01/2022 17,025.00 4 17,025.00
06/30/2022 ) _ J J J 69,905.00
11/01/2022 36,5007 TT2.000% 17,025.00Y ——""53,525.00%
05/01/2023 16,660.00 16,660.00
06/20/2023 70,185.00
11/01/2023 37,5007 T 2.000% 16,660.00  54,160.00
05/01/2024 16,285.00 16,285.00
06/30/2024 ' 70,445.00
11/01720%4 38,500 2.0009% 16,285.00 54,785.00 B -
05/01/2025 15,900.00 15,900.00
06/30/2025 _ o 70,685.00
11/01/2025 39,500 2.000%" 15,900.00 £8,400.00 T
05/01/2026 15,505.00 15,505.00
06/30/2026 ) . 70,905,00
11/01/2026 41,000 2.000% 15,505.00 56,505.00
05/01/2027 15,095.00 15,095.00
| 507500 06/30/2027 o ) 71,600.00
' 11/01/2027 42,000 2.000% 15,095.00 57,095.00
05/01/2028 14,675.00 14,675.00
06/30/2028 _ 71,770.00
11/01/2028 43500 2.0060% 14,675.00 58,175.00
05/01/2029 14,240.00 14,240.00
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May 28,2013 4:58 pm Prepared by D. finance

(Finance 7.003 w..y of Leitchfield, KY:LEITCH-2012A_RD) Page 2

BOND DEBT SERVICE
City of Leitchfield, KY
Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 2012A
Period Annual
Ending Principal Coupon Interest Debt Service Debt Service
06/30/2029 e 72,415.00
11/0172029 44,500 ~2.000% 14,240.00 58,740.00
0570172030 13,795.00 13,795,00
06/30/2030 72,535.00
1170172030 46,000 27000% 13,795,060 58,795.00
05/01/2031 13,335.00 13,335.00
06/30/2031 ' o 74.130.00
1170172031 47,000 2.000% 13,335.00 T80,33500
05/01/2032 12,865.00 12,865.00
06/30/2032 _ , e ..73,200.00
1170172032 48,500 2.000% 12.665.00 61,365.00
05/01/2033 12,380.00 12,380.00
06/30/2033 73,745.00 _
1170172033 50,000 2.000% 12,380.00 62,380.00
05/01/2034 11,880.00 11,880.00
06/30/2034 74,269.00
1170172054 51,500 2.000% 11,880.00 63,380.00
05/01/2035 11,365.00 11,365.00
06/30/2035 74,745.00
1170772035 3,000 2.000% 11.365.00 64,365.00
05/01/2036 10,835.00 10,835.00
06/30/2036 75,200.00
1170172036 54,500 2.:000% 10,835.00 65,335.00
05/01/2037 10,290.00 10,290.00
06/30/2037 75,625.00
1170172037 56,000 2.000% 10,290.00 66,290.00
05/01/2038 9,730.00 9,730.00
06/30/2038 76,020.00
11/01/2038 57,500 2.000% 9730007 67,230.00
05/01/2039 9,155.00 9,155.00
06/30/2039 76,385.00
11/01/2039 59,000 2.000% 9,155.00 “68,155.00 —
05/01/2040 8,565.00 8,565.00
06/30/2040 76,720.00
1101720807 6L,000 2000% BSES.00TTTTT6Y565.00
05/01/2041 7,955.00 7,955.00
- 06/30/2041 77,520.00
T T T 0172041 62,500 2.000% 7,955.00 7 70,455.00
05/01/2042 7,330.00 7,330.00
06/30/2042 77,785.00
11/01/2042 64,500 2.000% 7,330,007 T 71,830.007
05/01/2043 6,685.00 6,685.00
06/30/2043 78,515.00
11/01/2043 66,000 2.000% 6,685.00 72,685.00
05/01/2044 6,025.00 6,025.00
16/30/2044 N o 7871000
11/01/2044 68,000 2.000% 6,025.00 “9492500 T T
05/01/2045 5,345.00 5,345.00
06/30/2045 _ 79,370.00
1170172045 70,000 TT2.000% 534500 T 75,345.00 T
05/01/2046 4,645.00 4,645.00
06/30/2046 79,990.00
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May 28, 2013 4:58 pm Prepared by D. Finance (Finance 7.003 v..y of Leitchfield, KY:LEITCH-2012A_RD) Page 3

BOND DEBT SERVICE
City of Leitchfield, KY
Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 2012A
Period Annual
Ending Principal Coupon Interest Debt Service Debt Service
11/01/2046 72,000 2.000% 4,645.00 76,645.00
05/01/2047 3,925.00 3,925.00
06/30/2047 80,570.00
1170172047 74,0007 2.0000% 3,625.00° TT7T77,925.00
05/01/2048 3,185.00 3,185.00
__06/30/2048 81,110.00
11/01/2048~ “76,500 2.000%~  TTT3,185.00 79.685.00
05/01/2049 2,420.00 2,420.00
06/30/2049 o _82,105.00
11/0172049 78,500 2.000% 7,420.00 "80,920.00 S
05/01/2050 1,635.00 1,635.00
06/30/2050 82,555.00
T11/01/2050 81,000~ 2.000% 1,635.00 82,635.00
05/01/2051 825.00 825.00
06/30/2051 83,460.00
“"1i/0172051 82,500° 2.000% ~T 825.007 83,325.00~
06/30/2052 83,325.00
1,960,000 968,623.33 2,928,623.33 2,928,623.33
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BOND DEBT SERVICE WTP- QL6 Y Series 201AB prust

City of Leitchfield, KY
Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 2012B

May 28,2013 5:00 pm Prepared by DBC Finance

eyl . IO

AOCO0.CO0 JHTTS . S Annual
Period Debt Debt
Ending Principal Coupon Interest Service Service

05/01/2012 5,500 5,500

06/30/2012 5,500

11/01/2012 v 7,500 7,500

05/01/2013 7,500 7,500

06/30/2013 15,000

11/01/2013 v 7,500 7,500

05/01/2014 V7,500 7,500

06/30/2014 15,000

11/01/2014 12,500 2.000% 7,500 20,000

05/01/2015 7,375 7,375

06/30/2015 ) _ aa e 27,375

11/0172015 13,000¢ 2.000% 7378 20,373

05/01/2016 7,24%2.21 7,245 9.

06/30/2016 N A 27,620

11/01/2016 13,500 2.0009%" vT2A8a Ay 2674330

05/01/2017 7138 V1,116°

06/30/2017 ‘ ondl TN gy

1170172617 13,500 ¥ 2.000% T 7imgpay 2063072\

05/01/2018 . +6:973

06/30/2018 ) e f&%@\ v 64723 37565

11/01/2018 14,000V T 2.000% 6975 GRIA ALGSTE e 9A8T

05/01/2019 Jﬁ,aasessz.m 5835 L3232.21

06/30/2019 27,810

1176172019~ 14660V “2000% 6835 (3D22026:835 25 gaady

05/01/2020 6,695 RP\ 6695 |y bgmRr

6 /30 /2020 27,530

1170172020 145004  "2.000% 66950\ 2£195°2), 14021 V

05/01/2021 6550 75513— )

06/30/2021 W L=t 2%7\45

11/01/2021 180667 2.000% 655506 PNhi 5075, 69721

05/01/2022 648, 51 21 6400 J

06/30/2022 b LY G o

11/01/2022 " 15000%  “2000% —mT LR 20 AT AL 4

05/01/2023 6,250 6,250

06/30/2023 _ - - 27,650

11/01/2023 15,500 2.000% 6,250 21,750

05/01/2024 6,095 6,095

06/30/2024 27,845

11707720247 ~16,000 2000% 6,095 22,005"

05/01/2025 5,935 5,935

06/30/2025 28,030

11/01/2025 16,000 2.000% 5,935 21,935

05/01/2026 5,775 5,775

06/30/2026 27,710

TT70172076 16,500 2.000% 5,775 22,275 '

05/01/2027 5,610 5,610

06/30/2027 27,885

1170172027 —{7,000 2.000% 5,610 ‘22,610 T

05/01/2028 5,440 5,440

06/30/2028 B o L 28,050

1170172028 17,500 2.000% 5,440 22,940

HILLIARD IYONS
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(Finance 7.003 City of Leitchfield, KY:LEITCH-2012B_RD) Page 2

BOND DEBT SERVICE
City of Leitchfield, KY
Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 2012B
Annual
Period Debt Debt
Ending Principal Coupon Interest Service Service
05/01/2029 5,265 5,265
06/30/2029 28,205
T11/01/2029 17,5007 T 2.000% 5,265 22,765 T
05/01/2030 5,090 5,090
27,855
718,000 T2.000% TTTE,090° Y2309 T T
05/01/2031 4,510 4910
06/30/2031 28,000
1T/0172031— 18,500 2.000% 4910 23.410
05/01/2032 4,725 4,725
06/30/2032 28,135
1170172032 19,000 2.000% 4,725 23,725
05/01/2033 4,535 4,535
U8 < 0o 06/30/2033 28,260
e 1170172033 19,500° 7 2.000% 4,535 24,035 T
05/01/2034 4,340 4,340
0 06/30/2034 o e . (28375
T 1 /0172034 20,000° '2.000% 4,340 24,340 B /
05/01/2035 4,140 4,140 /
06/30/2035 N ) o 28,48D
11/01/2035 20,500 2.000% 4,140 24,640 '
05/01/2036 3,935 3,935
06/30/2036 28,575
“11/01/2036 '20,500° 2,000% 3,935 24,435
05/01/2037 3,730 3,730
06/30/2037 28,165
$1 /0172037 21,000 2.000% 37307 TT24,7307
0570172038 3,520 3,520
06/30/2038 ) 28,250
1170172038 21,5007 2.000% 3,520 25,0207
05/01/2039 3,305 3,305
06/30/2039 28,325
1170172039 22,000 2.000% 773,305 725,305
05/01/2040 3,085 3,085
06/30/2040 28,390
11/01/2040 22,5007 "2.000% 3,085 '25,585
05/01/2041 2,860 2,860
28,000 06/30/2041 28,445
1170172041 23,000 2.000% 2860 25,860
05/01/2042 2,630 2,630
06/30/2042 , 28,490
1170172042 235007 72.000% 2,630 726,130 coTT
05/01/2043 2,395 2,395
06/30/2043 28,525
11/0177043 24,000 2.000% 2,395 TTE6395
05/01/2044 2,155 2,155
500 06/30/2044 _ 28,550
1176172644 2.000% Y7285 26,6557
05/01/2045 1,910 1,910
(673072045 e — . 28,565 ;
131/01/2045 25,500 2.000% 1,910 27,410 o

HILLARD YOS
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BOND DEBT SERVICE

City of Leitchfield, KY
Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 2012B

Annual
Period Debt Debt
Ending Principal Coupon Interest Service Service

05/01/2046 1,655 1,655
06/30/2046 29,065
1170172046~ 26,0007 TT2.000% 1,655 27,655
05/01/2047 1,395 1,395
06/30/2047 29,050
1170172047 26,500 2.000% "1,395" 27,895
05/01/2048 1,130 1,130
06/30/2048 _ 29,025
11/0172048 “T27,0007 T2.000% 1,130 28,130
05/01/2049 860 860
06/30/2049 28,990
T1701/2049 ~27,500 2.000% U8B0 28,360
£t 05/01/2050 585 585
~ 6200 06/30/2050 28,945
1170172050 28,580 2.000% 585 29,085
05/01/2051 300 300
06/30/2051 29,385
1170172051 7'3G,000° '2.000% 300 30,3007
06/30/2052

30,300

750,000 360,490 1,110,490 1,110,490

HILLIARD LYONS
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J.J.B. Hilliard, W.L. Lyons

Public Finance

gptt*t
20 Serips Re
$2,260,000
City of Leitchfield
Combined Utilities System Refunding Revenue Bonds
Series 2014
e Boa‘ﬁ?t Service Requirements
O TOT TR SaTs
Date Coupon Principal Interest Total P+ Fiscal Total
11/01/2014 1.00% 95,000.00 ¥ $16,689.97V $111,689.97 \/
5/01/2015 - . 34457507 34,457.50 $146,147.47
11/01/2015 | | 1.00% 7500000 v 34,457 50\/ 109,457.50s/"
_5/01/2016 - - 34,082.50+" 34,082,504/ 143,540.00
"11/01/2016 1.00% 75,000.00%" 34,082.50 109,082.5047"
5/01/2017 - - 33,707.50 / 33,707.50},/ 142,790.00
1170172017 | 1.40% '—“‘_'is",‘doﬁ’.‘bb‘j TTTTTTEE0750 16870750}~
._5/01/2018 - - 33,182.50 33,182.50|y/ 141,890.00
11/01/2018 1,40 ssobomn f 33,182.50 v 108,182.50} o/
5/01/2019 . . 32,657.50 v/ 32,657.50|y/ 140,840.00
11/01/2019 2.00% 80,000.00 \/ 5285750V 112,657.50{ ¢/
5/01/2020 " - 31,857.50 31.857.50 144,515.00
11/01/2020 2.00% 80,000.00 ¥/ 31,857.50¢ 111,857.50¢/ ¥
5/01/2021 - - 31,057.50 31,057.50{3) P 142,915.00
11/01/2021 | | 2.60% 80,0000 T 31,057509 111,057.50{ 944 1©
sporfa022 || = 30,017.50 4 30,017.50{ 3] |5 )7> 141,075.00
11/0172022 2.60% ss,ooo.coJ 30,017. 50“/ 115,017.508% J\ M) 2>
5/017 - . 28,912.50 28,912.50 143,330.00
11/01/202 2.90% 85,000.00 28,912.50 113,912.50|
5/01/2024 ! - 27,680.00
"11/01/20247|" | T2.90% '50,000,00 117,680.00
5/01/2025 4 . 26,375.00 26,375.00 144,055.00
11/017/2025 || "3.00%" ~ 90,000.00 TT26,375.00 116,375.00 S
5/01/2026 S 4 25,025.00 25,025.00}. 141,400.00
11/01/2026 | | 3.00% 95,000.00 25,025.00 120,025.00 "
5/01/2027 . . 23,600.00 23,600.00 143,625.00
11/01/2027 4.00% 100,000.00 23,600.00 123,600.00
/0172028 - - 21,600.00 21,600.00 145,200.00
11/01/2028 4.00% 100,000.00 21,600.00 121,600.00! T
_5/01/2029 ) ; 19,600.00 19,600.00 141,200.00
11/01/2029 4,00% 105,000.00 19,600.00 124,600.00}.
5/01/2030 - . 17,500.00 17,500.00 142,100.00
117017203071 7| T4.00% 110,000.00 17,500.00 ""127,500.00
5/01/2031 4 5 15,300.00 15,300.00 142,800.00
T11/01/2031 | | 4o00% ||  115,000.00 1530000 130,300.00
5/01/2032 - . 13,000.00 13,000.00 143,300.00
"11/01/2032 4.00% 120,000.00 13,000.00 133,000.00
5/01/2033 ‘ - 10,600.00 10,600.00 143,600.00
~11/01/2033"|—{~200% "] |~—125,000.00 ~10,600:00 = —135:600.00| = |—
5/01/2034 ) . 8,100.00 8,100.00| _143,700.00
11/01/2034 | | 4.00% " 130,000.00 8,100.00 138,100.00
5/01/2035 - ’ 5,500.00 5,500.00{ 143,600.00
"11/01/2035 4.00% 135,000.00 5,500.00 140,500.00
$/01/2036 s 2,800.00 2,800.00 143,300.00
11/0173036 4.00% 140,000.00 2,800.00 142,800.00 142,800.00
Total $2,260,000.00 $1,029,914.97 $3,289,914.97 $3,289,914.97
oneP®
% ol Oj\\D .
o

7/31/2014 7 M
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Schedule 1l
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BONDS

DATE OF ISSUE

AMOUNT OF ISSUE
INTEREST RATE

DATE OF FIRST PAYMENT

Tt

oo Tou 71100100

Loan #91-06
6/21/2021

1.750%

Qe

G 9‘(‘}.
$5,864000 0. U, 0L

12021 D67

Seeves a0 A

1 5@‘{ &OBB(\:.M

City of Leitchfield

This payment schedule

is an estimate onl

based upon the bond

schedule and is for

planning purposes

only.

Notices will be mailed

priar to the scheduled

paymant dates which

state the required

payment amount.

Pmt Date Interest Principal Total Payment Outstanding Principal
11701721 Jexy66,°835,746.80 $97,000 5132,746.80 }3’% 40473, §5,467,000
05/01/22 $47,836.25}/ $47,836.25 ,// ) $5,467,000
11/01/22 $47,836.25/ $89,000},/ $146,836.25)/ $5,368,000
05/01/23 $46,970.00 $46,970.00 $5,368,000
11/01/23 $46,970.00 $101,000 $147,970.00 $5,267,000
05/01/24 $46,086.25 $46,086.25 $5,267,000
11/01/24 $46,086.25  $102,000 $148,086.25 $5,165,000
05/01/25 $45,193.75 $45,193.75 $5,165,000
11/01/25 $45,193.75;  $104,000 $149,193.75 $5,061,000
05/01/26 $44,283,75 $44,283.75 $5,061,000
11/01/26 $44,283.75|  $106,000 $150,283.75 $4,955,000
05/01/27 $43,356.25 $43,356.25 $4,955,000
11/01/27 $43,356.25{  $108,000 $151,356.25 $4,847,000
05/01/28 $42,411.25 $42,411.25 $4,847,000
11/01/28 $42,411.25{  $110,000 $152,411.25 $4,737,000
05/01/29 $41,448.75 $41,448.75 $4,737,000
11/01/29 $41,448.75] $112,000 $153,448.75 $4,625,000
05/01/30 $40,468.75 $40,468.75 $4,625,000
11/01/30 $40,468.75{ §114,000 $154,468.75 $4,511,000
05/01/31 $39,471.25 $39,471.25 $4,511,000
11/01/31 $39,471.25 $116,000 $155,471.25 $4,395,000
05/01/32 $38,456.25 $38,456.25 $4,395,000
11/01/32 $38,456.25 $118,000 $156,456.25 $4,277,000
05/01/33 $37,423.75 $37,423.75 $4,277,000
11/01/33 $37,423.75] $120,000 $157,423.75 $4,157,000]
05/01/34 $36,373.75 $36,373.75 $4,157,000
11/01/34 $36,373.75 $122,000 $158,373.75 $4,035,000
05/01/35 $35,306.25 $35,308.25 $4,035,000
11/01/35 $35,306.25| $124,000 $159,306.25 $3,911,800
05/01/36 $34,221.25 $34,221.25 $3,911,000
11/01/36 $34,221.25]  $126,000 $160,221.25 $3,785,000
05/01/37 $33,118.75 $33,118.75 $3,785,000
11/01/37 $33,118.75 $128,000 $161,118.75 $3,657,000
05/01/38 $31,998.75 $31,998.75 $3,657,000
11/01/38 $31,998.75| $131,000 $162,998.75 $3,526,000
05/01/39 $30,852.50 $30,852.50 $3,526,000
11/01/38 $30,852.50 $133,000 $163,852.50 $3,393,000
05/01/40 $29,688.75 $25,688.75 $3,393,000
11/01/40 $29,688.75 $135,000 $164,688.75 $3,258,000
05/01/41 $28,507.50 $28,507.50 $3,258,000
11/01/41 $28,507.50] $138,000 $166,507.50 $3,120,600
05/01/42 $27,300.00 $27,300.00 $3,120,000
11/01/42 $27,300.00{ $140,000 $167,300.00 $2,980,000
05/01/43 $26,075.00 $26,075.00 $2,980,000
11/01/43 $26,075.00 $142,000 $168,075.00 $2,838,000
05/01/44 $24,832.50 $24,832.50 $2,838,000
11/01/44 $24,832.50 $145,000 $169,832.50 $2,693,000
05/01/45 $23,563.75 $23,563.75 $2,693,000
11/01/45 $23,563.75| §148,000 $171,563.75 $2,545,000
05/01/46 $22,268.75 $22,268.75 $2,545,000
11/01/48 $22,268.75 $150,000/ $172,268.75 §2,395,000
05/01/47 $20,856.25 $20,956.25 $2,395,000
11/01/47 $20,956.25! $153,000 $§173,956.25 §2,242,000
05/01/48 $19,617.50 $19,617.50 $2,242,000
11/01/48 $19,617.50] $155,000 $174,617.50 $2,087,000
045/01/49 $18,261.25 $18,261.25 $2,087,000
11/01/49 $18,261.25 $158,0001 $176,261.25 $1,929,000
05/01/50 $16,878.75 $16,878.75 $1,929,000
11/01/50 $16,878.75] $161,000 $177,878.75 $1,768,000
05/01/51 $15,470.00 $15,470.00 $1,768,000
11/01/51 $15,470.00] $164,000 $179,470.00 $1,604,000
05/01/52 $14,035.00 $14,035.00 $1,604,000
11/01/52 $14,035.00] $167,000 $181,035.00 $1,437,000
05/01/53 $12,573.75 $12,573.75 $1,437,000
11/01/53 $12,573.75 $169,000 $181,573.75 $1,268,000
05/01/54 $11,095.00 $11,095.00 $1,268,000
11/01/54 $11,095.00 $172,000 $183,095.00 $1,096,000




05/01/55 $9,590.00 $9,590.00 $1,096,000
11/01/55 $9,590.00{  §175,000 $184,590.00 $921,000
05/01/56 $8,058.75 $8,058.75 $921,000
11/01/56 $8,058.75]  $179,000 $187,058.75 $742,000
05/01/57 $6,492.50 $6,492.50 $742,000
11/01/57 $6,492.50; $182,000 $188,492.50 $560,000
05/01/58 $4,900.00 $4,900.00 $560,000
11/01/58 $4,900.00{  $185,000 $189,900.00 $375,000
05/01/59 $3,281.25 $3,281.25 $375,000
11/01/58 $3,281.25]  $188,000 $191,281.25 $187,000
05/01/60 $1,636.25 $1,636.25 $187,000
11/01/60 $1,636.25  $187,000 $188,636.25




BONDS

DATE OF ISSUE

AMOUNT OF ISSUE
INTEREST RATE

DATE OF FIRST PAYMENT

1

Tat
Q0oTIRTBDANTD

Loan #91-08
6/21/2021
$4,539,000
1.750%

wye Qaes A0V D

112021 OV 0.0, 30 L5 14

Pmt Date interest Principal Total Payment Qutstanding Principal
e g 508§ ey—— 1101121 /$29,161:52{ , J §79,000 ~$108;164:62/1 01 5 oL 45 $4,460,000
4 05/01/22 $39,025.001/ $39,025.000y $4,460,000
11/01/22 §30,025.00{/ $81,000] $120,025.00)/| Dbl 3y &~ $4,379,000
City of Leitchfield 05/01/23 $38,316.25 §38,316.25 $4,379,000
11/01/23 $38,316.25 $82,000 $120,316.25 $4,297,000
05/01/24 $37,598.75 $37,598.75 $4,257,000
11/01/24 $37,598.75 $84,000 $121,598.75 $4,213,000
This payment schedule 05/01/25 $36,863.75 $36,863.75 $4,213,000
is an estimate only 11/01/25 $36,863.75 $85,000 $121,863.75 $4,128,000
based upon the bond 05/01/26 $36,120.00 $36,120.00 $4,128,000
schedule and is for 11/01/26 $36,120.00 $87,000 $123,120.00 $4,041,000
planning purposes 05/01/27 $35,358.75 $35,358.75 $4,041,000
only. 11/01/27 $35,358.75 $88,000 $123,358.75 $3,953,000
05/01/28 $34,588.75] $34,588.75 $3,953,000
Notices will be mailed 11/01/28 $34,588.75 $90,000 $124,588.75 $3,863,000
prior to the scheduled 05/01/29 $33,801.25 $33,801.25 53,863,000
payment dates which 11/01/28 $33,801.25 $91,000 $124,801.25 §3,772,000
state the required 05/01/30 $33,005.00 $33,005.00 $3,772,0600
payment amount. 11/01/30 $33,005.00 $93,000 $126,005.00 §3,679,000
05/01/31 $32,191.25 $32,191.25 §3,679,000
11/01/31 $32,191.25 $94,000 §126,191.25 §3,585,000
05/01/32 $31,368.75 $31,368.75 $3,585,000
11/01/32 $31,368.75 $96,000 $127,368.75 $3,483.000
05/01/33 $30,528.75 $30,528.75 $3,489,000
11/01/33 $30,528.75 $98,000 $128,528.75 $3,391,000
05/01/34 $29,671.25 $29,671.25 $3,391,000
11/01/34 $29,671.25 $99,0600 $128,671.25 $3,292,000
05/01/35 $28,805.00 $28,805.00 $3,292,000
11/01/35 $28,805.00] $101,000 $129,805.00 $3,191,000
05/01/36 $27,921.25 $27,921.25 $3,191,600
11/01/36 $27,921.25{ §$103,000 $130,921.25 $3,088,000
05/01/37 $27,020.00 $27,020.00 $3,088,000
11/01/37 $27,020.00 $105,000 $132,020.00 $2,983,000
05/01/38 $26,101.25 $26,101.25 $2,983,000
11/01/38 $26,101.25 $107,000 $133,101.25 $2,876,000
05/01/39 $25,165.00 $25,165.00 $2,876,000
11/01/38 $25,165.00{ $108,000 $133,165.00 $2,768,000
05/01/40 $24,220.00 $24,220.00 $2,768,000
11/01/40 $24,220.00 $110,000 $134,220.00 $2,658,000
05/01/41 $23,257.50 $23,257.50 $2,658,000
11/01/41 $23,257.50] $112,000 $135,257.50 $2,546,000
05/01/42 $22,277.50 $22,277.50 $2,546,000
11/01/42 $22,277.50] $114,000 $136,277.50 $2,432,000
05/01/43 $21,280.00 $21,280.00 $2,432,000
11/01/43 $21,280.00f $116,000 $137,280.00 $2,316,000
05/01/44 $20,265.00 $20,265.00 $2,316,000
11/01/44 $20,265.00 $118,000 3138,265.00 $2,198,000
05/01/45 $19,232.50 $19,232.50 $2,198,000
11/01/45 $19,232.50{ $120,000 $139,232.50 $2,078,000
05/01/46 $18,182.50 $18,182.50 §2,078,000
11/01/48 $18,182.50] $122,000 $140,182.50 51,956,000
05/01/47 $17,115.00 $17,115.00 $1,956,000
11/01/47 $17,115.00] $125,000 $142,115.00 $1,831,000
05/01/48 $16,021.25 $16,021.25 $1,831,000
11/01/48 $16,021.25| $127,000 $143,021.25 $1,704,000
05/01/49 $14,910.00 $14,910.00 §1,704,000
11/01/49 $14,910.00 $128,000 $143,910.00 $1,575,000
05/01/50 $13,781.25 $13,781.25 $1,675,000
11/01/50 $13,781.25 $131,000 $144,781.25 $1,444,000
05/01/51 $12,635.00 $12,635.00 $1,444,000
11/01/51 $12,635.00{ $134,000 $146,635.00 $1,310,600
05/01/52 $11,462.50 $11,462.50 $1,310,000
11/01/52 $11,462.50] $136,000 $147,462.50 $1,174,000
05/01/53 $10,272.50 $10,272.50 $1,174,000
11/01/53 $10,272.50, $138,000 $148,272.50 $1,036,000
05/01/54 $9,065.00 $9,065.00 $1,036,000
11/01/54 $9,065.00 $141,000 $150,085.00 $895,800




05/01/55 $7,831.256 $7,831,25 $895,000
11/01/55 $7,831.25;  $143,000 $150,831.25 $752,000
05/01/56 $6,580.00 $6,580.00 $752,000
11/01/56 $6,580.00{  $146,000 $152,580.00 $606,000
05/01/57 §5,302.50 $5,302.50 $606,000
11/01/57 $5,302.50;  $148,000 $153,302.50 $458,000
05/01/58 $4,007.50 $4,007.50 $458,000
11/01/58 $4,007.50;  $151,000 $155,007.50 $307,000
05/01/59 $2,686.25 $2,686.25 $307,000
11/01/58; $2,686.25] $153,000 $155,686.25 $154,000
05/01/60 $1,347.50 $1,347.50 $154,000
11/01/60 $1,347.50  §$154,000 $155,347.50






